
Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center 
1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 
 

Wednesday, September 27, 2017 
7:00 PM 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA  

PUBLIC COMMENTS  

Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. 
Comments on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the September 13, 2017 Regular Meeting. 

2. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Amending Colma Municipal Code Sections 6.02.020, 6.02.050 and 
6.02.070 Relating to Preferential Parking Permits, Guest Parking Permits and Temporary Parking 
Permits (Second Reading). 

3. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract 
with Kittelson & Associates, Inc. in the Amount of $250,000 for Preparation of Colma Systemic 
Safety Analysis Report (SSAR). 

NEW BUSINESS 

4. GRANT FUNDING REQUEST FOR THE DCPLA 

Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving a Grant to Daly City Public Library Associates, 
Finding That the Grant Serves a Public Purpose, and Authorizing a Contract with Daly City Public 
Library Associates for the Use of Town Funds. 

5. FY 2017-18 NON-PROFIT FUNDING 

Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Determining Eligibility for Grant Funding, Approving 
Grants to Eligible Organizations, Finding That Each Approved Grant Serves a Public Purpose, and 
Authorizing Contracts with Each Eligible Organization for the Use of Town Funds. 



Page 2 of 2 
 

REPORTS 

Mayor/City Council       

City Manager          

ADJOURNMENT 
The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review at the Colma Town Hall, 1188 El 
Camino Real, Colma, CA during normal business hours (Mon – Fri 8am-5pm). Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-
mail should call Caitlin Corley at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov.  

Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required 
by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to 
view the agenda, should direct such a request to Brian Dossey, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or 
brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov. Please allow two business days for your request to be processed. 

mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov


Page 1 of 5 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center, 1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 
Wednesday, September 13, 2017 

7:00 p.m.  

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Helen Fisicaro called the Regular Meeting of the City Council to order at 7:05 p.m. 

Council Present – Mayor Helen Fisicaro, Vice Mayor Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez, Council 
Members Joanne F. del Rosario, John Irish Goodwin and Diana Colvin were all present 

Staff Present – Interim City Manager William C. Norton, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, 
Administrative Services Director Brian Dossey, Police Chief Kirk Stratton, Contract Director of 
Public Works Brad Donohue, Contract City Planner Michael Laughlin, Human Resources 
Manager Lori Burns and City Clerk Caitlin Corley were in attendance.  

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor Fisicaro announced that item #5 would be pulled from the agenda. The Mayor asked 
for a motion to adopt the agenda with the requested change. 

Action:  Council Member Colvin moved to adopt the agenda with the requested change; the 
motion was seconded by Council Member del Rosario and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor  
Raquel Gonzalez  
Joanne F. del Rosario  
John Irish Goodwin  
Diana Colvin  

5 0 

PRESENTATIONS 

 Council presented Kris Perez, Commissioner of the San Mateo County LGBTQ Commission,
with a proclamation honoring the commission’s work.

 Council presented the Town’s Honor Roll Students with gifts and a certificate in honor of
their academic achievements.

There was a brief break for coffee and cupcakes from 7:18 p.m. to 7:38 p.m.

 PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mayor Fisicaro opened the public comment period at 7:38 p.m. and seeing no one come 
forward to speak, she closed the public comment period. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the August 23, 2017 Regular Meeting.

Item #1



 

Page 2 of 5 
 

2. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for August 2017. 

3. Motion Approving the Town’s Response to the Grand Jury Report Dated July 12, 2017, 
Regarding “A Delicate Balance: Privacy vs. Protection.”  

4. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Adding Subchapter 3.02.274 to the Colma Administrative 
Code, Employment, Relating to Value of Uniforms for CalPERS Purposes and Authorizing an 
Increase in Standby Pay. 

5. [Pulled from Agenda]. 

6. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing an Updated Agreement for Financial Services with 
Regional Government Services (RGS). 

7. Motion to Receive and File the Fourth Quarter (April 2017 – June 2017) Financial Report 
and Direct Staff to Post a Copy to the Town Website. 

8. Motion to Receive and File the Semi-Annual Report of Investment Holdings, which is 
Presented for Informational Purposes. 

9. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing a Close-Out of Certain Projects and Redistribution 
of Certain Inactive Project Balances Including an Additional Appropriation of $150,000 in 
Fiscal Year 2017-18. 

10. Motion to Accept Work Performed by Farallon Company on Phase 2 of the Town Hall 
Project as Complete and Authorize the Director of Public Works to File a Notice of 
Completion with the County Recorder’s Office and Make the Final Payment to Farallon 
Company in Accordance with State Prompt Payment Laws. 

Action: Council Member Colvin moved to approve the Consent Calendar items #1 through 
10, with the exception of item #5 which was removed from the agenda; the motion was 
seconded by Council Member Goodwin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 5 0    

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

11. FURTHER AMENDMENTS TO PREFERENTIAL PARKING PERMIT PLAN 

Police Chief Kirk Stratton presented the staff report. Mayor Fisicaro opened the public 
hearing at 7:49 p.m. Citizen Patricia Simpson asked for clarification on the number of days 
that a temporary pass would be valid. Resident Ken Gonzalez asked if police had observed 
abuse of the current guest permits. The Mayor closed the public hearing at 7:57 p.m. 
Council discussion followed. 

Action: Council Member Colvin moved to Introduce an Ordinance Amending Colma 
Municipal Code Sections 6.02.020, 6.02.050 and 6.02.070 Relating to Preferential Parking 
Permits, Guest Parking Permits and Temporary Parking Permits, and Waive a Further 



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Reading of the Ordinance; the motion was seconded by Council Member del Rosario and 
carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 5 0    

Action: Mayor Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution Updating the Colma Administrative 
Code, Subchapter 6.01 to Eliminate Duplicative Provisions of the Municipal Code, Chapter 
6.02, Related to Preferential Parking Zones and Permit Parking; the motion was seconded by 
Council Member Goodwin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 5 0    

NEW BUSINESS 

12. LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES RESOLUTIONS 

Administrative Services Director Brian Dossey presented the staff report. Mayor Fisicaro 
opened the public comment period at 8:19 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, 
she closed the public comment period. Council discussion followed. 

Action: Council Member Goodwin made a motion Directing the Voting Delegate to Vote in 
Support of the Two Resolutions that are Being Considered at the 2017 League of California 
Cities Conference on September 15, 2017; the motion was seconded by Council Member del 
Rosario and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 5 0    

 

  



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

13. RESPONSE TO LAFCO PROGRESS REPORT 

Administrative Services Director Brian Dossey presented the staff report. Mayor Fisicaro 
opened the public comment period at 8:31 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, 
she closed the public comment period. Council discussion followed. 

Action: Mayor Fisicaro moved to Approve the Town’s Response to the Local Agency 
Formation Commission (LAFCo) Request for a Progress Report to the 2015 Municipal Service 
Review (MSR) and Sphere of Influence (SOI) Update; the motion was seconded by Council 
Member del Rosario and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 5 0    

14. SUPPORT OF PARIS CLIMATE AGREEMENT 

Contract City Planner Michael Laughlin presented the staff report. Mayor Fisicaro opened the 
public comment period at 8:45 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed 
the public comment period. Council discussion followed. 

Action: Council Member Goodwin moved to Adopt a Resolution of the City Council of the 
Town of Colma in Support of the Paris Climate Agreement; the motion was seconded by 
Council Member Colvin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 5 0    

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

The Regular City Council Meeting on Wednesday, September 27, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. and 
Wednesday, October 11, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. 

Council tentatively scheduled a Council Workshop for Wednesday, September 27, 2017, to 
be held before the Regular City Council Meeting that evening, and the Council 
Reorganization for Tuesday, December 12 at 6:30 p.m. 

  



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

REPORTS 

Helen Fisicaro 
Chamber of Commerce Business to Consumers Event, 9/9/17 
Town Picnic, 9/9/17 
Colma-Daly City Gun Buy Back Event, 9/9/17 
Wilderness School 50th Anniversary, 9/9/17 

 
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez 

Town Picnic, 9/9/17 
 
Joanne F. del Rosario 

Colma-Daly City Rotary Club Induction of New Officers, 8/24/17 
Town Picnic, 9/9/17 

 
Diana Colvin 

Colma-Daly City Gun Buy Back Event, 9/9/17 
 

Interim City Manager William C. Norton reported on the following: 
 The Colma-Daly City Gun Buy Back event collected 48 guns. Organizers hope to hold a 

second event soon. 
 Detective Dawn Marchetti worked with SFPD and Sacramento Police to identify and 

apprehend the suspect who injured a Colma Police Officer earlier this summer. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  

Mayor Fisicaro adjourned the meeting at 9:04 p.m. in honor of Carlos Romero, uncle of 
Mayor Fisicaro, and George Ginilo, longtime community member. She asked for a moment 
of silence in honor of the 16th anniversary of the September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks. She 
also asked that we keep the victims of Hurricane Harvey, Hurricane Irma and the 8.1 
earthquake in Mexico in our thoughts. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Caitlin Corley 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Ordinance No.-__, CMC Subchapter 6.02Preferential Parking Page 1 of 5 
25977.00100\30130077.1

ORDINANCE NO. ___ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

ORDINANCE AMENDING COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE SECTIONS 6.02.020, 6.02.050 
AND 6.02.070 RELATING TO PREFERENTIAL PARKING PERMITS, GUEST PARKING 

PERMITS AND TEMPORARY PARKING PERMITS  

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. RECITALS. 

(a) Parking has been a long term issue in the Sterling Park neighborhood. 

(b) Past regulatory efforts have focused primarily on commuter parking impacts due 
to the nearby Colma BART station. 

(c) There continues to be a limited number of parking spaces relative to the number 
of residents’ vehicles. 

(d) The Town finds that limiting the number of preferential parking permits for 
residents and the number of temporary permits, and eliminating separate guest permits, 
is in the best interests of the health, safety, and general welfare of the residents of 
Colma. 

ARTICLE 2. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. 

The City Council hereby finds that all of the foregoing recitals and the staff report 
presented herewith are true and correct and are hereby incorporated and adopted as findings of 
the City Council as if fully set forth herein. 

ARTICLE 3. CMC SECTION 6.02.020 AMENDED. 

Section 6.02.020, subsection (g), shall be and hereby is added to the Colma Municipal Code as 
follows: 

“(g) Limits on the number of preferential parking permits and temporary parking 
permits is reasonable and necessary to provide greater harmony between the number of 
parking permits and the number of parking spaces within the preferential parking zone in 
order to ensure the effectiveness of the preferential parking program.” 

ARTICLE 4. CMC SECTION 6.02.050 AMENDED. 

Colma Municipal Code, Section 6.02.050, shall be and hereby is amended and restated to read 
as follows: 

Item #2



 
Ordinance No.-__, CMC Subchapter 6.02Preferential Parking  Page 2 of 5 
25977.00100\30130077.1  

“6.02.050 Issuance of Permits. 

(a) Applications.  The Police Department shall issue permits, in a form to be determined 
by the Police Department and consistent with the provisions of this article, for 
preferential parking to qualified residents and qualified merchants who have completed 
an application form supplied by the Police Department.  Applicants for such permits shall 
present such proof as may be required by the Police Department of a residence or place 
of business adjacent to the area designated as a preferential parking zone. 
 
(b) Preferential Parking Permits. One Preferential Parking Permit Up to four (4) 
Preferential Parking Permits shall be issued for each vehicle registered to a Qualified 
Resident per dwelling unit in a preferential parking zone, for each vehicle registered to a 
Qualified Resident that resides at the permitted dwelling unit. One Preferential Parking 
Permit shall may be issued to each non-resident employee of a Qualified Merchant upon 
request to the Chief of Police. A Preferential Parking Permit shall remain effective for a 
period of no more than two years, or until the preferential parking zone for which such 
permit was issued is eliminated, or the permits previously issued are re-issued under a 
different time-frame in the sole discretion of the Town, whichever is less. The Chief of 
Police is authorized to issue preferential permits on an staggered basis. 

 
(c) Guest Permits.  Two Guest Permits shall be issued to each dwelling unit in a 
preferential parking zone, and two Guest Permits to each qualified merchant in a 
preferential parking zone if there is no green zone in front of such merchant’s place of 
business. Guest Permits shall be valid only during the calendar year in which they are 
issued. Guest permits shall only be valid when displayed on vehicles not owned or 
registered to a Qualified Resident, are for use on passenger motor vehicles only and shall 
not be used for boats, trailers, recreational vehicles, vehicles with a manufacturers’ gross 
vehicle weight rating of more than 12,000 pounds, or vehicles for hire.” 
 
(c)  Temporary Permits. The Police Department shall may also issue to any qualified 
resident or any qualified merchant a Temporary Permit for use by a bona fide visitor of 
the applicant, as follows: 
 
(1) On an oral request of a qualified resident or merchant, the Police Department 

may issue a Temporary Permit for one day only, the date of use authorized by 
such permit being no later than ten days after issuance; and 

(1) On a written request of a qualified resident or merchant showing that issuance of 
a temporary permit is for the benefit of the resident or merchant and that it is 
reasonable to request a temporary permit for a period longer than one day, the 
Police Department may issue a Temporary Permit for up to fourteen (14) days. 
The request can be made through the Town’s website or in person and must 
include the license plate number of the visitor’s vehicle.  A Temporary Permit may 
be denied based on misuse (e.g. the qualified resident has used the Temporary 
Permit to facilitate repeated access to BART, rather than for bona fide visitor of 
the qualified resident).  Temporary Permits may be issued for up to fourteen (14) 
days. No more than fifteen temporary permits may be issued per dwelling per 
year regardless of the number of qualified residents residing at the dwelling, and 
no more than one permit may be in effect at one time.  The resident/merchant 



 
Ordinance No.-__, CMC Subchapter 6.02Preferential Parking  Page 3 of 5 
25977.00100\30130077.1  

must retrieve each Temporary Permit in person at the Police Department and 
show a California driver license with a Colma address (or other proof of residency 
deemed appropriate by the Chief of Police) or that he/she is a qualified merchant.  

(d) Placement. Resident and Merchant Permits must be displayed on the rear window 
on the driver’s side of the vehicle (except for convertibles in which case the Permit must 
be displayed inside the front windshield), with the permit number or vehicle license 
number clearly visible from the outside. Temporary Permits must be suspended from the 
rear view mirror of the automobile, with the permit number or vehicle license number 
clearly visible from the outside 

(e) Conditions of permit. Each parking permit shall be subject to all conditions and 
restrictions set forth in this section and of the preferential parking zone for which it is 
issued.  

(f) Other Laws and Regulations. The issuance of a parking permit shall not be 
construed to be a permit for, or approval of, any violation of any provision of this Code 
or any other laws or regulations. 

(g) Fees. No fee shall be charged for issuance of a permit except that the city council 
may, by resolution, set a fee for replacement of lost or destroyed permits.  

(h) Appeals. Any person who has been denied a permit may appeal that decision to 
the City Manager by giving written notice thereof within ten (10) days after the decision 
of the Police Department. 

 
ARTICLE 5. CMC SECTION 6.02.070 AMENDED. 

Colma Municipal Code, Section 6.02.070, shall be and hereby is amended and restated to read 
as follows: 

6.02.070 Unlawful Acts; Punishments. 

(a) It shall be unlawful to do, or cause, any of the following, and any person who does or 
causes to be done any of the following shall be guilty of a misdemeanor: 

(1) During the hours between 8:00 AM and 9:00 PM from Monday through Friday, 
inclusive, except holidays, to stop, park or leave any vehicle standing for more 
than two hours in a preferential parking zone unless an unexpired permit validly 
issued pursuant to this ordinance is prominently displayed in the manner provided 
herein, except as otherwise provided in Municipal Code Section 6.02.325, or 
unless the vehicle is exempt from this prohibition; 

(2) To sell, rent or lease, or cause to be sold, rented or leased, for any value or 
consideration, any preferential parking permit; 

(3) To buy or otherwise acquire for value or use any preferential parking permit; 



 
Ordinance No.-__, CMC Subchapter 6.02Preferential Parking  Page 4 of 5 
25977.00100\30130077.1  

(4) To falsely represent himself or herself as eligible for a parking permit or to furnish 
false information in an application for a permit; 

(5) To copy, reproduce, or otherwise bring into existence a facsimile or counterfeit 
parking permit, or to alter a parking permit; 

(6) (A) To display a Residential or Merchant Parking Permit in a vehicle other than 
the vehicle for which such Permit was issued; or 

(7) (B) To remove chalk marks placed on tires by the Police Department. 

(b) Violation of any of the provisions of the foregoing paragraph shall constitute a 
misdemeanor punishable as set forth in section 1.05.010 of the Colma Municipal Code and a 
public nuisance subject to the provisions of Subchapter 2.01 of Chapter One of the Colma 
Municipal Code (section 2.01.010, et seq). In addition to any other remedy provided by law or 
ordinance, upon proof of a violation of this ordinance, the Town may revoke all preferential 
parking permits issued to the dwelling unit in which the person who violated this ordinance 
resided or the place of business in which the person who violated this ordinance is employed. 

 
 

ARTICLE 6. SEVERABILITY.  

Each of the provisions of this Ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 
ARTICLE 7. NOT A CEQA PROJECT. 

The City Council finds that this Ordinance is not subject to the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) pursuant to Sections 15060(c)(2) (the activity will not result in a direct or 
reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment) and 15060(c)(3) (the 
activity is not a project as defined in Section 15378) of the CEQA Guidelines, California Code of 
Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, because it has no potential for resulting in physical change to 
the environment, directly or indirectly. 

 
ARTICLE 8. EFFECTIVE DATE.  

This ordinance, or a summary thereof prepared by the City Attorney, shall be posted on the 
three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of its passage and is to 
take force and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 

 

 



Ordinance No. __ - Amending Municipal Code re Preferential Parking (Introduced 7/26/17) Page 5 of 5 
25977.00100\30130077.1  
9/7/17  

Certificate of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. ___ was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the Town of Colma held on _______________, 2017 and duly adopted at a 
regular meeting of said City Council held on _______________, 2017 by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      

Joanne F. del Rosario       

John Irish Goodwin      

Diana Colvin      

Voting Tally      

 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



SSAR Report - Kittelson & Associates Contract  Page 1 of 4 
25977.00100\30127230.1

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Brad Donohue, Director of Public Works 

VIA:  William C. Norton, Interim City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 27, 2017 

SUBJECT: Colma Systemic Safety Analysis Report (SSAR) 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 
CONTRACT WITH KITTELSON & ASSOCIATES, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $250,000 FOR 
PREPARATION OF COLMA SYSTEMIC SAFETY ANALYSIS REPORT (SSAR) 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed contract with Kittelson & Associates is for the preparation of Colma Systemic 
Safety Analysis Report (SSAR). The SSAR will identify and prioritize safety improvement projects 
that are eligible for Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) funds and other safety 
funding programs. 

The purpose of the project is to evaluate a number of major arterials and collectors within the 
Town’s roadway network utilizing a proactive safety analysis approach to hopefully prevent 
future roadway fatalities and injuries that have and or can occur within Town. The SSAR report 
will become the Colma Traffic Safety Plan, this plan will identify traffic, pedestrian and bicycle 
safety issues and concerns. Once these safety issues are identified, the report will recommend 
the proper counter measure (solution) to correct the safety issue.  Kittelson & Associates is 
recommended as the preferred consultant based on their proposal, strong project team and 
their demonstrated proficiency and understanding of the project and goals.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

The Town of Colma was awarded a California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) Grant in 
the amount of $250,000 for the SSAR study. The negotiated proposal that was agreed to by 
Kittelson & Associates is for $250,000, which will be reimbursed by the SSAR grant. In obtaining 
the $250,000 grant funds the Town had to provide a local match of $50,000. The Town’s local 
match will provide project management and oversight of the project and also a contingency for 
unforeseen and extra work if required.    

Item #3



SSAR Report - Kittelson & Associates Contract   Page 2 of 4 
25977.00100\30127230.1  
 

The Town’s estimated funding plan for the SSAR project is as follows: 
 
 

• Proposed CIP Allocation for FY 18-19 (Local Match)  $   50,000 
• SSAR Grant       $ 250,000 

Estimated Project Total  $ 300,000 
 
BACKGROUND 

The Town has been allocated $250,000 in State funds from the Systemic Safety Analysis Report 
Program (SSARP).  The Program Supplement Agreement was executed with California 
Department of Transportation (Caltrans) on 11/21/2016 for administrating this project under 
Agency-State Master Agreement No. 00416S.   

The goal of SSAR is to assist local agencies in evaluating their roadway network using systemic 
safety approach and identifying qualified safety projects for HSIP and other grant funding 
programs which, if implemented, will improve the overall safety of roadway network. 

On June 26, 2017, the Town of Colma released a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the 
preparation of the SSAR.  The RFP contained a very specific scope of work along with timely 
deliverables.  Five consultants responded to the RFP; DKS; Fehr & Peers; Kittelson & 
Associates; Stantec; and TJKM.  Staff reviewed the proposals of the five that were submitted, a 
short list of three consultants were selected among the top-ranked firms and interviewed by a 
panel consisting of Town Staff and a representative from the Police Department.  

The Town followed the Town Municipal Code and Caltrans’s Local Assistance Procedures Manual 
(LAPM) in the consultant selection process.  The evaluation was based on the technical merit of 
proposals and cost proposals were kept confidential and sealed until all proposals had been 
reviewed and most qualified consultants were selected and interviewed.  The panel reviewed 
cost proposal from Kittelson & Associates as being the top-ranked consultant and entered into 
contract negotiations with them.  

ANALYSIS 

The purpose of the Systemic Safety Analysis Report (SSAR) is to provide a detailed analysis 
that will provide implementation of safety measures across the Town that will enhance safety 
for all modes of transportation (vehicles, bicycles and pedestrians). The project involves a 
safety analysis study for a number of major arterials and collectors within the Town’s roadway 
network. These corridors include El Camino Real, Junipero Serra Boulevard, Hillside Boulevard, 
Serramonte Boulevard, Mission Road, Collins Avenue, Colma Boulevard, Lawndale Boulevard 
and F Street.   

The SSAR will include the assessment of the existing road conditions, traffic count, evaluation 
of crash data and types, development and selection of low-cost countermeasures, prioritization 
of proposed safety improvements for implementation based on higher benefit-cost ratio 
calculations, and preliminary engineering design of selected safety projects for up to five (5) 
locations. 

The scope of services requested for this project includes the following works:  



SSAR Report - Kittelson & Associates Contract   Page 3 of 4 
25977.00100\30127230.1  
 

1. Analyze crash data to determine crash patterns by location, type of crash, 
roadway/intersection types, roadway characteristics, types of road users, 
and any circumstance of the crash which would lead to potential 
countermeasure identification. In addition, analyze roadway characteristics 
to determine the risk factors associated with nominal safety design to aid in 
potential countermeasure identification and strategies. 

2. Develop a listing of potential countermeasures based on safety issues 
through systemic analysis and discussions with Town staff, City Council, and 
key stakeholders. Participants in these discussions should include, but not be 
limited to, representatives of “4 E’s” of roadway safety: Engineering, 
Education, Enforcement and Emergency Medical Services. 

3. Develop Colma Traffic Safety Plan as a final product of Systemic Safety 
Analysis Report. This document will summarize the existing conditions, list 
safety projects in a prioritized manner by location, and recommend 
strategies for improving safety throughout the Town.   

4. Develop detailed scope for priority projects to apply for HSIP Cycle funds. 
The scope will include vicinity/location map, countermeasures being applied, 
crash data and diagrams, benefits summary, benefit/cost ratio calculations, 
project narrative, and preliminary engineering design for up to five safety 
projects.  

The Consultant shall be responsible for undertaking the following tasks, summarized below: 
 

o Task 1 – Project Management;  
o Task 2 – Document Review;  
o Task 3 – Data Collection; 
o Task 4 – Data Analysis; 
o Task 5 – Countermeasure Selection and Stakeholder Workshop; 
o Task 6 – Receive consensus from the City Council; 
o Task 7 – Develop Safety Projects; 
o Task 8 – Draft Systemic Safety Analysis Report; 
o Task 9 – Preliminary Engineering Design (30% Design Plans); 
o Task 10 – Final Systemic Safety Analysis Report; and 
o Task 11 – Prepare Sample HSIP Application  

 
Kittelson & Associates has shown proficiency with similar studies in transportation planning and 
engineering, and has partnered with BKF Engineers who has been delivering civil engineering 
and land planning services for government agencies for over 100 years. 

With all the components in the scope of work, the project is anticipated to take six (6) months 
to complete. After contacting references and a review of project scope and budget, staff is 
recommending to the City Council that Kittelson & Associates and their subconsultant BKF 
Engineers be hired to prepare the Colma Systemic Safety Analysis Report (SSAR). 



SSAR Report - Kittelson & Associates Contract   Page 4 of 4 
25977.00100\30127230.1  
 

Council Adopted Values 

The recommendation is consistent with the Council value of responsibility in improving the 
safety features on and along the major arterials and collectors within the Town’s roadways 
network. 

 
Sustainability Impact 

 
The City Council’s adoption of the resolution is consistent with the Town’s sustainability goals 
and Complete Streets Program goals as it ensures safety measures are identified to provide 
better traffic flow on Town streets. 

 
Alternatives 

The City Council could choose to not approve the resolution authorizing the contract with Kittelson 
& Associates. This is not recommended because the Town would lose the $250,000 grant to assist 
with the implementation of SSAR project. Further, potential safety measures to improve the 
Town’s roadway network will not be identified. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the resolution approving and authorizing the City 
Manager to execute the contract with Kittelson & Associates for the preparation of Colma 
Systemic Safety Analysis Report (SSAR). 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution 
B. Kittelson & Associates Professional Services Agreement with attached scope of work, 

budget and schedule 
 
 
 
 



Res. 2017-__, SSAR Report - Kittelson & Associates Contract Page 1 of 2 
25977.00100\30127229.1  

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 
CONTRACT WITH KITTELSON & ASSOCIATES, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $250,000 

FOR PREPARATION OF COLMA SYSTEMIC SAFETY ANALYSIS REPORT (SSAR) 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background.

(a) The Town of Colma has been allocated $250,000 in State funds from the Systemic
Safety Analysis Report Program (SSARP) by the California Department of Transportation. 

(b)  The goal of SSARP is to assist local agencies in evaluating their roadway network using 
systemic safety approach and identifying qualified safety projects for HSIP and other grant 
funding programs which, if implemented, will improve the overall safety of roadway network. 

(c) The Town of Colma released a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the preparation of the 
systematic safety analysis report (SSAR), and determined that Kittelson & Associates is the top-
ranked consultant. 

(d) Therefore, the Town of Colma desires to approve a contract with Kittelson & Associates 
for preparation of a systematic safety analysis report. 

2. Finding.

(a) The City Council finds that the contract with the Kittelson & Associates for preparation of
a systematic safety analysis report is not exempt from competitive bidding, and competitive 
bidding was duly performed pursuant to Colma Municipal Code section 1.06.220.  

3. Order

(a) The contract between the Town of Colma and Kittelson & Associates for preparation of a
systematic safety analysis report, a copy of which is on file with the City Clerk, is approved by 
the City Council of the Town of Colma.  

(b) The City Manager is authorized to execute said contract on behalf of the Town of Colma, 
with such minor technical amendments as may be deemed appropriate by the City Manager and 
the City Attorney. 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

Attachment A



Res. 2017-__, SSAR Report - Kittelson & Associates Contract Page 2 of 2 
25977.00100\30127229.1  

/ 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2017-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on September 27, 2017 by the following vote: 
 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      

Raquel Gonzalez        

Joanne del Rosario       

Diana Colvin      

John Irish Goodwin      

Voting Tally      

 
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 



1 
25977.00100\29530476.1

TOWN OF COLMA 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is made and entered into as of ________________, 2017 by and between 
the Town of Colma, a municipal corporation organized and operating under the laws of the State 
of California with its principal place of business at 1198 El Camino Real, Colma, CA 94014 
(“Town”), and Kittelson & Associates, Inc., a CORPORATION, with its principal place of business 
at 1161 Mission Street, Office #563, San Francisco, CA 94103 (hereinafter referred to as 
“Consultant”).  Town and Consultant are sometimes individually referred to as “Party” and 
collectively as “Parties” in this Agreement. 

RECITALS 

A. Town is a public agency of the State of California and is in need of professional 
services for the following project: 

Colma Systemic Safety Analysis Report (SSAR) 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Project”). 

B. Consultant is duly licensed and has the necessary qualifications to provide such 
services. 

C. The Parties desire by this Agreement to establish the terms for Town to retain 
Consultant to provide the services described herein. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Services.

Consultant shall provide the Town with the services described in the Scope of Services 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A.”  

2. Compensation.

a. Subject to paragraph 2(b) below, the Town shall pay for such services in
accordance with the Schedule of Charges set forth in Exhibit “B.” 

b. In no event shall the total amount paid for services rendered by Consultant
under this Agreement exceed the sum of $250,000 [Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars]. 
This amount is to cover all printing and related costs, and the Town will not pay any additional 
fees for printing expenses.  Periodic payments shall be made within 30 days of receipt of an 
invoice which includes a detailed description of the work performed.  Payments to Consultant for 
work performed will be made on a monthly billing basis. 

3. Additional Work.

If changes in the work seem merited by Consultant or the Town, and informal consultations 
with the other party indicate that a change is warranted, it shall be processed in the following 
manner:  a letter outlining the changes shall be forwarded to the Town by Consultant with a 
statement of estimated changes in fee or time schedule.  An amendment to this Agreement shall 

Attachment B



 

2 
25977.00100\29530476.1  

be prepared by the Town and executed by both Parties before performance of such services, or 
the Town will not be required to pay for the changes in the scope of work.  Such amendment shall 
not render ineffective or invalidate unaffected portions of this Agreement. 

4. Maintenance of Records. 

Books, documents, papers, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to costs 
incurred shall be maintained by Consultant and made available at all reasonable times during the 
contract period and for four (4) years from the date of final payment under the contract for 
inspection by Town. 

5. Time of Performance. 

Consultant shall perform its services in a prompt and timely manner and shall commence 
performance upon receipt of written notice from the Town to proceed (“Notice to Proceed”).  
Consultant shall complete the services required hereunder in accordance with the “Activity 
Schedule” set forth in Exhibit “C”.  The Notice to Proceed shall set forth the date of 
commencement of work. 

6. Delays in Performance. 

a. Neither Town nor Consultant shall be considered in default of this Agreement for 
delays in performance caused by circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the non-
performing party.  For purposes of this Agreement, such circumstances include but are not limited 
to, abnormal weather conditions; floods; earthquakes; fire; epidemics; war; riots and other civil 
disturbances; strikes, lockouts, work slowdowns, and other labor disturbances; sabotage or 
judicial restraint. 

b. Should such circumstances occur, the non-performing party shall, within a 
reasonable time of being prevented from performing, give written notice to the other party 
describing the circumstances preventing continued performance and the efforts being made to 
resume performance of this Agreement. 

7. Compliance with Law. 

a. Consultant shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes and 
regulations of the federal, state and local government, including Cal/OSHA requirements. 

b. If required, Consultant shall assist the Town, as requested, in obtaining and 
maintaining all permits required of Consultant by federal, state and local regulatory agencies. 

c. If applicable, Consultant is responsible for all costs of clean up and/ or removal of 
hazardous and toxic substances spilled as a result of his or her services or operations performed 
under this Agreement. 

 

 



 

3 
25977.00100\29530476.1  

8. Standard of Care 

Consultant’s services will be performed in accordance with generally accepted 
professional practices and principles and in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill 
ordinarily exercised by members of the profession currently practicing under similar conditions. 

9. Assignment and Subconsultant 

Consultant shall not assign, sublet, or transfer this Agreement or any rights under or 
interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the Town, which may be withheld for any 
reason.  Any attempt to so assign or so transfer without such consent shall be void and without 
legal effect and shall constitute grounds for termination.  Subcontracts, if any, shall contain a 
provision making them subject to all provisions stipulated in this Agreement.  Nothing contained 
herein shall prevent Consultant from employing independent associates, and subconsultants as 
Consultant may deem appropriate to assist in the performance of services hereunder. 

10. Independent Consultant 

Consultant is retained as an independent contractor and is not an employee of Town.  No 
employee or agent of Consultant shall become an employee of Town.  The work to be performed 
shall be in accordance with the work described in this Agreement, subject to such directions and 
amendments from Town as herein provided. 

11. Insurance.  Consultant shall not commence work for the Town until it has provided 
evidence satisfactory to the Town it has secured all insurance required under this section.  In 
addition, Consultant shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until 
it has secured all insurance required under this section. 

a. Commercial General Liability 

(i) The Consultant shall take out and maintain, during the performance 
of all work under this Agreement, in amounts not less than specified herein, Commercial General 
Liability Insurance, in a form and with insurance companies acceptable to the Town. 

(ii) Coverage for Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at 
least as broad as the following: 

(1) Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability 
coverage (Occurrence Form CG 00 01) or exact equivalent. 

(iii) Commercial General Liability Insurance must include coverage 
for the following: 

(1) Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
(2) Personal Injury/Advertising Injury 
(3) Premises/Operations Liability 
(4) Products/Completed Operations Liability 
(5) Aggregate Limits that Apply per Project 
(6) Explosion, Collapse and Underground (UCX) exclusion 

deleted 
(7) Contractual Liability with respect to this Contract 
(8) Broad Form Property Damage 



 

4 
25977.00100\29530476.1  

(9) Independent Consultants Coverage 

 (iv) The policy shall contain no endorsements or provisions limiting 
coverage for (1) contractual liability; (2) cross liability exclusion for claims or suits by one insured 
against another; (3) products/completed operations liability; or (4) contain any other exclusion 
contrary to the Agreement. 

 (v) The policy shall give Town, its officials, officers, employees, 
agents and Town designated volunteers additional insured status using ISO endorsement forms 
CG 20 10 10 01 and 20 37 10 01, or endorsements providing the exact same coverage. 

 (vi) The general liability program may utilize either deductibles or 
provide coverage excess of a self-insured retention, subject to written approval by the Town, and 
provided that such deductibles shall not apply to the Town as an additional insured. 

b. Automobile Liability 

(i) At all times during the performance of the work under this 
Agreement, the Consultant shall maintain Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injury and 
property damage including coverage for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles, in a form and with 
insurance companies acceptable to the Town. 

(ii) Coverage for automobile liability insurance shall be at least as 
broad as Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 00 01 covering automobile liability 
(Coverage Symbol 1, any auto). 

(iii)  The policy shall give Town, its officials, officers, employees, agents 
and Town designated volunteers additional insured status. 

(iv) Subject to written approval by the Town, the automobile liability 
program may utilize deductibles, provided that such deductibles shall not apply to the Town as an 
additional insured, but not a self-insured retention. 

c. Workers’ Compensation/Employer’s Liability 

(i) Consultant certifies that he/she is aware of the provisions of Section 
3700 of the California Labor Code which requires every employer to be insured against liability 
for workers’ compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of 
that code, and he/she will comply with such provisions before commencing work under this 
Agreement. 
 

(ii) To the extent Consultant has employees at any time during the term 
of this Agreement, at all times during the performance of the work under this Agreement, the 
Consultant shall maintain full compensation insurance for all persons employed directly by 
him/her to carry out the work contemplated under this Agreement, all in accordance with the 
“Workers’ Compensation and Insurance Act,” Division IV of the Labor Code of the State of 
California and any acts amendatory thereof, and Employer’s Liability Coverage in amounts 
indicated herein.  Consultant shall require all subconsultants to obtain and maintain, for the period 
required by this Agreement, workers’ compensation coverage of the same type and limits as 
specified in this section. 

 
 



 

5 
25977.00100\29530476.1  

d. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) 

At all times during the performance of the work under this Agreement the Consultant shall 
maintain professional liability or Errors and Omissions insurance appropriate to its profession, in 
a form and with insurance companies acceptable to the Town and in an amount indicated herein.  
This insurance shall be endorsed to include contractual liability applicable to this Agreement and 
shall be written on a policy form coverage specifically designed to protect against acts, errors or 
omissions of the Consultant.  “Covered Professional Services” as designated in the policy must 
specifically include work performed under this Agreement. The policy must “pay on behalf of” the 
insured and must include a provision establishing the insurer's duty to defend. 

e. Minimum Policy Limits Required 

(i) The following insurance limits are required for the Agreement: 

Combined Single Limit 

Commercial General Liability  $1,000,000 per occurrence/ $2,000,000 aggregate  
  for bodily injury, personal injury, and property  
  damage 

 
Automobile Liability   $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and 

property damage 

Employer’s Liability   $1,000,000 per occurrence 

Professional Liability   $1,000,000 per claim and aggregate (errors and 
omissions) 

 
 (ii) With the exception of the Professional Liability policy, defense 

costs shall be payable in addition to the limits. 

 (iii) Requirements of specific coverage or limits contained in this 
section are not intended as a limitation on coverage, limits, or other requirement, or a waiver of 
any coverage normally provided by any insurance.  Any available coverage shall be provided to 
the parties required to be named as Additional Insured pursuant to this Agreement. 

f. Evidence Required 

Prior to execution of the Agreement, the Consultant shall file with the Town 
evidence of insurance from an insurer or insurers certifying to the coverage of all insurance 
required herein.  Such evidence shall include original copies of the ISO CG 00 01 (or insurer’s 
equivalent) signed by the insurer’s representative and Certificate of Insurance (Acord Form 25-
S or equivalent), together with required endorsements.  All evidence of insurance shall be signed 
by a properly authorized officer, agent, or qualified representative of the insurer and shall certify 
the names of the insured, any additional insureds, where appropriate, the type and amount of 
the insurance, the location and operations to which the insurance applies, and the expiration 
date of such insurance.   

g. Policy Provisions Required 



 

6 
25977.00100\29530476.1  

(i)  Consultant shall provide the Town at least thirty (30) days prior 
written notice of cancellation of any policy required by this Agreement, except that the Consultant 
shall provide at least ten (10) days prior written notice of cancellation of any such policy due to 
non-payment of premium.  If any of the required coverage is cancelled or expires during the term 
of this Agreement, the Consultant shall deliver renewal certificate(s) including the General 
Liability Additional Insured Endorsement to the Town at least ten (10) days prior to the effective 
date of cancellation or expiration. 

(ii) The Commercial General Liability Policy and Automobile Policy 
shall each contain a provision stating that Consultant’s policy is primary insurance and that any 
insurance, self-insurance or other coverage maintained by the Town or any named insureds shall 
not be called upon to contribute to any loss. 

(iii) The retroactive date (if any) of each policy is to be no later than the 
effective date of this Agreement.  Consultant shall maintain such coverage continuously for a 
period of at least three years after the completion of the work under this Agreement.  Consultant 
shall purchase a one (1) year extended reporting period A) if the retroactive date is advanced 
past the effective date of this Agreement; B) if the policy is cancelled or not renewed; or C) if the 
policy is replaced by another claims-made policy with a retroactive date subsequent to the 
effective date of this Agreement. 

(iv) All required insurance coverages, except for the professional 
liability coverage, shall contain or be endorsed to waiver of subrogation in favor of the Town, its 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers or shall specifically allow Consultant or 
others providing insurance evidence in compliance with these specifications to waive their right 
of recovery prior to a loss. Consultant hereby waives its own right of recovery against Town, and 
shall require similar written express waivers and insurance clauses from each of its 
subconsultants. 

(v) The limits set forth herein shall apply separately to each insured 
against whom claims are made or suits are brought, except with respect to the limits of liability.  
Further the limits set forth herein shall not be construed to relieve the Consultant from liability in 
excess of such coverage, nor shall it limit the Consultant’s indemnification obligations to the 
Town and shall not preclude the Town from taking such other actions available to the Town under 
other provisions of the Agreement or law. 

h. Qualifying Insurers 

(i) All policies required shall be issued by acceptable insurance 
companies, as determined by the Town, which satisfy the following minimum requirements: 

(1) Each such policy shall be from a company or companies 
with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII and admitted to transact in the 
business of insurance in the State of California, or otherwise allowed to place insurance 
through surplus line brokers under applicable provisions of the California Insurance Code 
or any federal law. 

i. Additional Insurance Provisions 

(i) The foregoing requirements as to the types and limits of insurance 
coverage to be maintained by Consultant, and any approval of said insurance by the Town, is 
not intended to and shall not in any manner limit or qualify the liabilities and obligations otherwise 



 

7 
25977.00100\29530476.1  

assumed by the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement, including but not limited to, the 
provisions concerning indemnification. 

(ii) If at any time during the life of the Agreement, any policy of 
insurance required under this Agreement does not comply with these specifications or is 
canceled and not replaced, Town has the right but not the duty to obtain the insurance it deems 
necessary and any premium paid by Town will be promptly reimbursed by Consultant or Town 
will withhold amounts sufficient to pay premium from Consultant payments. In the alternative, 
Town may cancel this Agreement. 

(iii) The Town may require the Consultant to provide complete copies 
of all insurance policies in effect for the duration of the Project. 

(iv) Neither the Town nor any of its officials, officers, employees, agents 
or volunteers shall be personally responsible for any liability arising under or by virtue of this 
Agreement. 

j. Subconsultant Insurance Requirements.  Consultant shall not allow any 
subcontractors or subconsultants to commence work on any subcontract until they have provided 
evidence satisfactory to the Town that they have secured all insurance required under this 
section.  Policies of commercial general liability insurance provided by such subcontractors or 
subconsultants shall be endorsed to name the Town as an additional insured using ISO form CG 
20 38 04 13 or an endorsement providing the exact same coverage.  If requested by Consultant, 
Town may approve different scopes or minimum limits of insurance for particular subcontractors 
or subconsultants.   

 12. Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall defend 
(with counsel reasonably approved by the Town), indemnify and hold the Town, its officials, 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers free and harmless from any and all claims, demands, 
causes of action, suits, actions, proceedings, costs, expenses, liability, judgments, awards, 
decrees, settlements, loss, damage or injury of any kind, in law or equity, to property or persons, 
including wrongful death, (collectively, “Claims’) that arise out of, pertain to or relate to the 
negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of the Consultant.  Consultant’s obligation to 
indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the Town, its officials, 
officers, employees, agents or volunteers. 

 13. California Labor Code Requirements. 

  a. Consultant is aware of the requirements of California Labor Code Sections 
1720 et seq. and 1770 et seq., which require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the 
performance of other requirements on certain “public works” and “maintenance” projects.  If the 
services are being performed as part of an applicable “public works” or “maintenance” project, as 
defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and if the total compensation is $1,000 or more, Consultant 
agrees to fully comply with such Prevailing Wage Laws, if applicable.  Consultant shall defend, 
indemnify and hold the Town, its officials, officers, employees and agents free and harmless from 
any claims, liabilities, costs, penalties or interest arising out of any failure or alleged failure to 
comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws.  It shall be mandatory upon the Consultant and all 
subconsultants to comply with all California Labor Code provisions, which include but are not 
limited to prevailing wages, employment of apprentices, hours of labor and debarment of 
contractors and subcontractors. 



 

8 
25977.00100\29530476.1  

  b. If the services are being performed as part of an applicable “public works” 
or “maintenance” project, then pursuant to Labor Code Sections 1725.5 and 1771.1, the 
Consultant and all subconsultants performing such Services must be registered with the 
Department of Industrial Relations.  Consultant shall maintain registration for the duration of the 
Project and require the same of any subconsultants, as applicable.  This Project may also be 
subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.  It 
shall be Consultant’s sole responsibility to comply with all applicable registration and labor 
compliance requirements. 

 14. Verification of Employment Eligibility. 

 By executing this Agreement, Consultant verifies that it fully complies with all requirements 
and restrictions of state and federal law respecting the employment of undocumented aliens, 
including, but not limited to, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as may be amended 
from time to time, and shall require all subconsultants and sub-subconsultants to comply with the 
same.   

 15. Town Material Requirements.   

 [INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

16. Laws and Venue. 

This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California.  
If any action is brought to interpret or enforce any term of this Agreement, the action shall be 
brought in a state or federal court situated in the County of San Mateo, State of California.   

17 Termination or Abandonment 

a. Town has the right to terminate or abandon any portion or all of the work 
under this Agreement by giving ten (10) calendar days written notice to Consultant.  In such event, 
Town shall be immediately given title and possession to all original field notes, drawings and 
specifications, written reports and other documents produced or developed for that portion of the 
work completed and/or being abandoned.  Town shall pay Consultant the reasonable value of 
services rendered for any portion of the work completed prior to termination.  If said termination 
occurs prior to completion of any task for the Project for which a payment request has not been 
received, the charge for services performed during such task shall be the reasonable value of 
such services, based on an amount mutually agreed to by Town and Consultant of the portion of 
such task completed but not paid prior to said termination.  Town shall not be liable for any costs 
other than the charges or portions thereof which are specified herein.  Consultant shall not be 
entitled to payment for unperformed services, and shall not be entitled to damages or 
compensation for termination of work. 

b. Consultant may terminate its obligation to provide further services under 
this Agreement upon thirty (30) calendar days’ written notice to Town only in the event of 
substantial failure by Town to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no 
fault of Consultant. 

 18 Documents.  Except as otherwise provided in “Termination or Abandonment,” 
above, all original field notes, written reports, Drawings and Specifications and other documents, 
produced or developed for the Project shall, upon payment in full for the services described in this 
Agreement, be furnished to and become the property of the Town. 



 

9 
25977.00100\29530476.1  

19. Organization 

Consultant shall assign Erin Ferguson as Project Manager.  The Project Manager shall 
not be removed from the Project or reassigned without the prior written consent of the Town. 

20. Limitation of Agreement. 

 This Agreement is limited to and includes only the work included in the Project described 
above. 
 
 21. Notice 
 

Any notice or instrument required to be given or delivered by this Agreement may be given 
or delivered by depositing the same in any United States Post Office, certified mail, return receipt 
requested, postage prepaid, addressed to: 

TOWN: 

Town of Colma 

1198 El Camino Real 

Colma, CA 94014  

Attn:  William Norton, Interim City Manager 

Bill.Norton@colma.ca.gov 

CONSULTANT: 

Kittelson & Associates, Inc. 

1161 Mission Street, Office #563 

San Francisco, CA 94103 

Attn: Erin Ferguson, Project Manager 

eferguson@kittelson.com 

 
and shall be effective upon receipt thereof. 

22. Third Party Rights 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to anyone other 
than the Town and the Consultant. 

23. Equal Opportunity Employment. 

Consultant represents that it is an equal opportunity employer and that it shall not 
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, 
national origin, ancestry, sex, age or other interests protected by the State or Federal 
Constitutions.  Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related to 
initial employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or 
termination. 

24. Entire Agreement 

This Agreement, with its exhibits, represents the entire understanding of Town and 
Consultant as to those matters contained herein, and supersedes and cancels any prior or 
contemporaneous oral or written understanding, promises or representations with respect to 
those matters covered hereunder.  Each party acknowledges that no representations, 
inducements, promises or agreements have been made by any person which are not incorporated 
herein, and that any other agreements shall be void.  This Agreement may not be modified or 
altered except in writing signed by both Parties hereto.  This is an integrated Agreement. 



 

10 
25977.00100\29530476.1  

25. Severability 

The unenforceability, invalidity or illegality of any provision(s) of this Agreement shall not 
render the provisions unenforceable, invalid or illegal. 

26. Successors and Assigns 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the successors in 
interest, executors, administrators and assigns of each party to this Agreement.  However, 
Consultant shall not assign or transfer by operation of law or otherwise any or all of its rights, 
burdens, duties or obligations without the prior written consent of Town.  Any attempted 
assignment without such consent shall be invalid and void. 

27. Non-Waiver 

None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be considered waived by either party, 
unless such waiver is specifically specified in writing. 

28. Time of Essence 

Time is of the essence for each and every provision of this Agreement. 

29. Town’s Right to Employ Other Consultants 

Town reserves its right to employ other consultants, including engineers, in connection 
with this Project or other projects. 

30. Prohibited Interests 

Consultant maintains and warrants that it has not employed nor retained any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for Consultant, to solicit or secure this 
Agreement.  Further, Consultant warrants that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any 
company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for Consultant, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or resulting 
from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation of this warranty, Town shall 
have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  For the term of this Agreement, no 
director, official, officer or employee of Town, during the term of his or her service with Town, shall 
have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit 
arising therefrom. 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 



 

11 
25977.00100\29530476.1  

SIGNATURE PAGE FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE TOWN OF COLMA 

AND KITTELSON & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date 
first written above. 

TOWN OF COLMA 

Approved By: 
 
       
William Norton 
Interim City Manager 
 
 

Approved as to Form: 

 
________________________________ 
Christopher J. Diaz 
City Attorney 
 

Kittelson & Associates, Inc. 

 

       
Signature 

Erin Ferguson                  
Name 
 
Project Manager     
Title 
 
       
Date 

 

 

  



 

25977.00100\29530476.1  

EXHIBIT A 

Scope of Services 
  



A-1 

Kittelson & Associates, Inc. 

Colma Systemic Safety Analysis Report (SSAR) 

Detailed Scope of Work 
The following describes our proposed scope for providing the deliverables identified in the RFP and to 

meet the Town’s overarching goal to improve safety across their street network. 

Task 1 Project Management 

TASK 1 PURPOSE Facilitate routine and regular communication between the Town staff and our team’s 

project manager to ensure the project stays on schedule and on budget and exceeds the Town’s needs 

and expectations. 

Subtask 1.1 Progress Meetings 

We will prepare for and conduct up to six (6) progress meetings with Town staff over the duration of the 

project. Our preparation for these meetings and follow-up from them will include agendas and meeting 

minutes. The overarching purpose of these meeting will be to assess the process being used and the 

results being generated, and identify opportunities for improvement prior to next project task. Based on 

this purpose and the proposed project schedule (shown in the Project Schedule section), we propose the 

six meetings be conducted at the project milestones shown below. 

Subtask 1.2 Finalized Project Budget and Detailed Project Schedule 

We will prepare a draft final project budget and draft detailed project schedule in advance of the kick-

off meeting (noted in Subtask 1.1). During the kick-off meeting, we will obtain Town staff input and 

suggested revisions to those items. Following the kick-off meeting, we will provide the finalized project 

budget and detailed project schedule. 

Subtask 1.3 Bi-Weekly Check-In Conference Calls 

Given the project schedule and the relatively quick pace at which the consultant team will be moving 

with the analysis and findings, we recommend bi-weekly check-in conference calls between the Town 

project manager and KAI team project manager to ensure timely coordination. These would be in 

addition to the six in-person progress meetings discussed in Subtask 1.1. 

Task 1 Deliverables  

• Finalized project budget 

• Detailed project schedule in Microsoft Project Format 

• Up to six (6) progress meetings with agendas and meeting minutes 

• Bi-weekly conference calls 



A-2 

SUMMARY OF PROJECT MEETINGS 

Meeting #1 Kick-Off Meeting 

We would present the draft final budget and detailed schedule for discussion with Town staff. We would 

revise the final budget and detailed schedule following the kick-off meeting. This meeting would also 

provide an opportunity for us to discuss data needs and existing data availability, and identify specific 

roadway data we will need to collect in Task 3. 

Meeting #2 Initial Data Analysis Results 

We would present the findings from data analysis results to Town staff providing an opportunity for 

comments, questions, and discussion. This meeting would also be timed to allow coordination and 

planning for the activities to occur with countermeasure selection and related stakeholder workshop. 

Meeting #3 Recap of Stakeholder Workshop and Preparation for City Council 

We would discuss the input received from the stakeholders related to the countermeasure selection 

including how it was incorporated. We would also discuss and present the information and 

recommendations to be presented to City Council for their review, input and approval. 

Meeting #4 Discussion of Safety Projects 

We would conduct this meeting with Town staff part way through the Task 7 Develop Safety Projects. 

We would present the draft safety projects enabling Town staff to provide input, ask questions, and 

provide direction. 

Meeting #5 Initiate 30% Design Plans 

We would use this meeting as a kick-off meeting specific to the 30% Design Plans for the highest priority 

locations and projects. This will enable more specific and detailed coordination related to the locations 

and projects selected for design. 

Meeting #6 Discuss Draft Safety Plan and Systemic Safety Analysis Report 

We would use this meeting to discuss the draft Safety Plan and SSAR providing an opportunity for the 

Town to share their questions, comments, and direction with us before we produce the final version of 

each. 

Task 2 Document Review 

TASK 2 PURPOSE Confirm the scope, focus, and methodology to be used in conducting the systemic 

safety analysis for the Town. 

Subtask 2.1 Identify Documents to Review 

We will identify the local, regional, state, and national documents most likely to be relevant for 

informing the Town’s SSAR. Such documents include but are not limited to the California Strategic 

Highway Safety Plan (SHSP); the Town’s Capital Improvement Program; San Mateo County 

Comprehensive Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan (2011); Colma General Plan – Circulation Element (2014); 

the Town’s Complete Streets Policies; applicable Engineering Design Standards; the Town’s existing 



A-3 

safety related policies and practices considered safety countermeasures; the most recent Highway 

Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) guidance from Caltrans and FHWA; and the Federal Highway 

Administration’s (FHWA) resources and recommended case studies. 

We will also conduct a literature review on current research and best practices case studies regarding 

system-wide statistical safety analysis and countermeasures; this will include researching multimodal 

safety efforts such as Vision Zero, as well as the Federal Highway Administration’s (FHWA) Office of 

Safety resources. Through the review, we will identify key factors related to collisions, data collection, 

and best practices regarding how to apply treatments. 

Finally, we will establish open line of communication and plan for future coordination with the on-going 

Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue Master Plan project and consultant team. This will be 

particularly critical as the SSAR progresses into data collection, analysis and ultimately identifying 

specific safety projects.  

Subtask 2.2 Conduct Document Review 

We will conduct a detailed review of documents, policies, and safety research relevant to the Town’s 

SSAR identified in Subtask 2.1. We will summarize the key findings that may impact the Town SSAR, and 

identify any required actions based on the findings. 

The review and summary will also include findings from the literature review focused on current 

research and best practices case studies noted in Subtask 2.1. Our team brings considerable experience 

researching and developing national guidance related to roadway safety, including serving on multiple 

National Cooperative Highway Research Program (NCHRP) and FHWA projects related specifically to the 

HSIP process, countermeasure selection, and systemic safety. In addition, we have conducted statistical 

analyses on collision and roadway data for a variety of agencies. Given our experience and 

understanding of the state of the practice, we will efficiently and thoroughly conduct this literature 

review and deliver a summary document that is informative to the update process. 

Task 2 Deliverables 

• Summary of document review highlighting current “note-worthy practices” and summarizing 

suggested methodology for the project 

• Initiate coordination with and establish coordination plan with Serramonte Boulevard and 

Collins Avenue Master Plan Project and consultant team 

Task 3 Data Collection 

TASK 3 PURPOSE Establish a complete and accurate database to be used for the crash and roadway data 

analysis, the results of which will inform the core content of the Town’s Safety Plan and SSAR. 

Subtask 3.1 Crash Data 

We will compile the most recent, complete five years of collision data starting with year 2011. We will 

also consider year 2016 in the analysis. We will work the data available from the Town’s Records 

Management System, the I-SWITRS database, and UC Berkeley’s Transportation Injury Mapping System 



A-4 

(TIMS). We will develop a collision database in GIS format to enable us to map the crashes across and 

along the nine study corridors. We will also compile the crash data for the entire Town into a 

comprehensive spreadsheet database to use for analysis of town-wide crash trends and patterns. 

We will also obtain and review the police reports for fatal and severe injury collisions on the study 

corridors. This will enable us to incorporate additional details of the collision events into the database 

providing an opportunity for a better understanding of the contributing factors—and therefore, 

potential countermeasures. 

Subtask 3.2 Roadway Characteristic Data 

Obtaining Roadway Data to Incorporate into Systemic Analysis 

From our experience conducting other systemic safety analyses, we know that supplementing collision 

data with contextual variables is particularly valuable for more effectively addressing collision patterns. 

Contextual variables include: 

• Roadway characteristics (roadway classification, number of lanes, vehicle speeds, type of 

intersection control, etc.) 

• Land use data (locations of schools, parks, senior centers, etc.) 

• Demographic data (population, employment, age, race, gender, etc.) 

We will pull such information from existing Town, regional, and state databases. We will also inventory 

recently planned or implemented countermeasures (as discussed in Subtask 3.3). This will allow us to 

make more informed systemic safety project recommendations. 

To the extent that there are critical missing roadway characteristic data, we conduct field reviews and 

reviews of aerial photographs to obtain those data attributes.  

We will organize all of the roadway characteristic data obtained and collected into the same GIS 

database as the crash data thereby making it possible to consider, by location on the street network, the 

crash and roadway or land use characteristics that may be contributing factors. 

Reviewing Existing Locations for Design Standards Compliance 

With respect to the review of the nine study corridors for compliance with design standards and the CA 

MUTCD, given the magnitude of such a data collection effort, to maximize the value of the City’s funding 

we propose to conduct a specific review of locations design standards and criteria consistency based on 

crash data analysis, contributing factors, risk factors identified, and the top five locations identified as 

priorities. To the degree to which there are contributing factors that indicate potential issues related to 

roadway infrastructure or design elements as they relate to design standards, we will review those 

features for compliance to the relevant design requirements. The top five locations and projects 

selected for the 30% Design Plans in Task 9 will be reviewed in greater detail as it relates to design 

standards and CA MUTCD compliance. 



A-5 

We believe the above approach for reviewing the study area for design standard compliance is 

appropriate from a safety perspective, given the profession’s evolution in considering safety from a 

quantitative and substantive perspective.  

Roadway safety analysis has evolved over time and the SSAR program is a representation of the industry 

recognition of quantitative safety. Historically, there has been a reliance on “nominal” safety: if it meets 

standards it must be safe and if does not meet standards it must not be safe. Design standards and 

policy compliance can affect a road users’ perception of operational and safety performance; however 

there are numerous factors and considerations that affect crash frequency and severity. Meeting criteria 

and standards alone is no longer the preferred way to measure safety and risk as our industry relies on 

principles of the AAHSTO’s Highway Safety Manual and other performance-based research. 

Safety is a continuum and not an absolute. Simply meeting a specific dimension does not ensure a 

feature or configuration is “safe”; there are many roadways and intersections that meet current criteria 

that still result in an unexpected number of crashes. Quantitative safety performance is based on 

considering crash risk and optimizing the magnitude of investment to reach a risk level.  

Subtask 3.3 Existing Systemic Countermeasures on the Street Network 

As noted in Subtask 3.2, we will inventory the recently planned or implemented countermeasures or 

safety projects within the Town and include those in the GIS-based database to be sure they are 

appropriately accounted for and considered in the analysis. Incorporating the information into the GIS 

database will enable us to easily map and develop tables of the countermeasures that have been 

deployed. The data for the existing systemic countermeasures will include: location, type of treatment, 

date of installation, and current status. 

Subtask 3.4 Traffic Count Data 

We will collect vehicle traffic counts via pneumatic tubes that also collect vehicle classification and 

speed data. Figure 1 identifies the 13 locations at which we suggest conducting such counts over seven 

(7) consecutive days, 24 hours per day. The data will be organized in 15-minute increments. Before 

finalizing the data collection locations, we will coordinate with Town staff as well as with the consultant 

team leading the work on the Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue Master Plan project.  

Figure 1. Proposed Daily Traffic Count Locations 



A-6 

 

We selected the approximate locations shown in Figure 1 to be able to understand traffic volume 

fluctuations throughout the Town and obtain at least one 7-day, 24-hour per day count on each study 

corridor. For the three corridors with the greatest proportion of fatal and injury crashes (El Camino Real, 

Junipero Serra Boulevard, and Serramonte Boulevard), we identified two 7-day, 24-hour per day count 

locations to provide a more complete understanding of how volumes may fluctuate along those 

corridors. 

After the data analysis has been conducted and the top six (6) locations identified, we will conduct peak 

period, multimodal turning movement counts at those locations.  

Task 3 Deliverables 

• Summary Data in a GIS-database including: 

• Crash data collected through SWITRS, TIMS and Police Department 

• Roadway characteristics for locations being considered for safety improvements 

• Traffic count report with the following information, but not limited to:  

o Station identification number 

o Road number 

o Direction and lane; weather condition 

o Date shall be included in an appendix to the final report 



A-7 

Task 4 Data Analysis 

TASK 4 PURPOSE Identify the dominant crash patterns and trends; relation of those patterns and trends 

to the state’s Strategic Highway Safety Plan (SHSP) challenge areas; risk factors associated with those 

patterns and trends; and locations with an overrepresentation of risk factors and severe crash history. 

Subtask 4.1 Town Crash Data Analysis 

We will analyze the town-wide crash data using two complementary approaches: 

• Descriptive Crash Statistics. Using cross-tabulations, graphs, and summary charts of crash 

severities, types, and primary contributing factors, we will develop descriptive statistics for the 

study corridors and citywide. Results would indicate the degree to which the dominant crash 

characteristics overlap with the state’s SHSP challenge or focus areas, and provide a clear 

picture for Town staff of overarching safety performance across the Town. 

• Spatial Network Analysis. Using a GIS-based software tool KAI has developed through similar 

systemic safety projects, we will map the reported crashes and their associated attributes (e.g., 

severity, primary contributing factors) on the Town’s high-risk corridors. We will then analyze 

the crash data and physical characteristics of the intersections and roadway segments along 

those corridors to identify potential risk factors (Subtask 4.2). 

Subtask 4.2 Identify Risk Factors and Potential Countermeasures 

We will review the physical and operational characteristics at the highest-ranked locations (from 

Subtask 4.1) to identify recurring physical characteristics associated with the crash patterns and trends. 

These recurring physical characteristics are considered potential risk factors. 

Using the risk factors identified for each of the Town’s dominant challenge areas, we will identify 

countermeasures (both engineering and non-engineering), planning cost estimates, and issues or 

constraints that may limit implementation. As part of this effort we will use Caltrans’ Local Roadway 

Safety Manual and the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Crash Modification Factor 

Clearinghouse to document the expected effectiveness of each countermeasure. The cost and 

effectiveness will inform draft priorities for implementation. 

Subtask 4.3 Identify Initial Priority Locations Based on Risk Factors and Crash Data 

Using the results from Subtask 4.2, we will prioritize road segments and intersections based on the 

number of risk factors present as well as the number and severity of crashes locations have experienced. 

This ensures the priorities consider locations with a history of crashes and locations with risk factors that 

could lead to crashes.  

Our team has conducted similar analyses and developed similar tools as part of the following projects:  

• Pedestrian Safety Strategy for the City of Oakland  

• Safer Streets Project for the City of Pasadena  

• Safety Management Plan for Clark County, Washington  



A-8 

• Safety Analysis Planning for NOACA (Cleveland Ohio MPO) 

• Oregon State Pedestrian and Bicycle Safety Implementation  

• Caltrans District 4 Bicycle Plan  

Task 4 Deliverables 

• Summary of data analysis results, with list of candidate locations with high potential for crashes 

(Also will be provided in Final Report)  

Task 5 Countermeasure Selection and Stakeholder Workshop 

TASK 5 PURPOSE Work with the community to identify engineering and non-engineering 

countermeasures that will be effective at reducing crashes and crash risk, and also are broadly 

supported for implementation. 

Subtask 5.1 Stakeholder Workshop #1 

The community plays a major role in neighborhood improvements, and our outreach effort will help us 

to understand the project locations through the community eye. Incorporating this perspective will 

increase the competitiveness of program project applications. 

We will develop a community input platform composed of a project website or web-based input 

platform, and a social media platform. Our project team will efficiently develop these tools to meet the 

needs of the project and community. We will use these platforms for feedback as well as to distribute 

information about meetings and project concepts. 

We will also hold a community workshop to discuss safety concerns identified through our data analysis 

and potential countermeasures. The workshop will educate the public and key stakeholders about the 

project, share initial findings, generate a list of possible countermeasures, and develop partnerships and 

synergies between stakeholders. Working with the Town, we will identify a list of key stakeholders, 

including Town planning and public works/engineering agencies, Caltrans, police and sheriff, emergency, 

and first responders. Finally, we will coordinate with the consultant team leading the work on the 

Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue Master Plan project to identify how proposed or potential 

changes identified within that work could improve safety or create additional opportunities for further 

enhancements that would improve roadway safety. 

Subtask 5.2 Engineering Countermeasures 

Within this task, we will organize the promising countermeasures into two categories: 1) low-cost 

systemic improvements; and 2) potential capital safety improvement projects. This recognizes that not 

all safety issues identified will be able to be effectively addressed through low-cost systemic 

improvements. In some instances, a larger capital investment may be needed and appropriate.  

 



A-9 

Subtask 5.3 Non-Engineering Countermeasures 

We will document suitable non-engineering policies, programs, and practices that support traffic safety. 

These may include educational programs and campaigns, enforcement schemes and technologies, 

public health initiatives, and other possible countermeasures. Key to this task will be the identification 

of resources and capacities present in Colma to create successful traffic safety policies, programs and 

practices.  

Task 5 Deliverables 

• Memorandum summarizing the prioritized listing of traffic safety countermeasures  

o Town staff will approve the listing of potential countermeasures to ensure they are 

commensurate with the intent of the Town’s Traffic Safety Plan to be included in the 

final report  

• Prepare for and conduct Stakeholder Workshop #1 , including: 

o PowerPoint presentation providing the overall framework for roadway safety planning 

to inform stakeholders on systemic analysis and potential safety countermeasures and 

strategies 

o Boards, maps, and materials to communicate the draft findings and solicit input from 

stakeholders 

o Summary of minutes of the workshop including local safety issues and concerns should 

be included in a memo format within the final report 

Task 6 Receive Consensus from City Council 

TASK 6 PURPOSE Obtain input and support from City Council for the proposed treatments and locations 

identified through the safety analysis and Stakeholder Workshop #1. The outcome will inform the 

development of safety projects and final content of the Safety Plan and SSAR. 

Subtask 6.1 Compile Stakeholder Input and Update Safety Recommendations 

We will work with Town staff to compile the stakeholder feedback from Workshop #1 and identify 

adjustments to the safety recommendations based on the input received. Using the updated 

information, we will prepare a PowerPoint presentation to provide to City Council that addresses: 

• Overall Framework for Safety Planning; 

• Local Issues and Concerns; 

• Stakeholder Input; 

• Crash Data Analysis; and 

• Potential Countermeasures. 

Town staff will review and approve the presentation materials prior to the City Council meeting. 

Subtask 6.2 Present Updating Information to City Council  

We will attend and present the PowerPoint presentation and materials developed in Subtask 6.1 to City 

Council to gather their input and reach consensus. We will also prepare for the meeting by preparing an 



A-10 

agenda and as follow-up activities to the meeting, we will provide meeting minutes, compilation of 

comments received, and a refined list of countermeasures based on City Council input. 

Task 6 Deliverables  

• Refined PowerPoint presentation addressing topics identified in Subtask 6.1 

• Prepare for and attend City Council meeting  

• Provide follow-up items from City Council meeting as identified in Subtask 6.2 

Task 7 Develop Safety Projects 

TASK 7 PURPOSE Develop projects based on final countermeasures and priorities for implementation. 

Subtask 7.1 Finalize and Prioritize Countermeasures and Stakeholder Workshop #2 

We will conduct a meeting with Town staff and key stakeholders to present the feedback we received 

from Workshop #1 and how that influenced the final prioritized list of countermeasures. The meeting 

will provide closure for stakeholders and also clearly communicate how the prioritized countermeasures 

will advance forward into projects. 

Subtask 7.2 Identify and Prioritize Locations for Countermeasures and Calculate 

Benefit/Cost Ratios 

We will review the prioritized locations from Task 4 to determine how those systemic treatments could 

be applied to the high-risk corridors. We propose conducting field reviews of the locations to be sure the 

systemic treatments being identified are appropriate. We will then work with the Town to identify the 

highest-priority locations and projects for which project scopes and concept designs can be developed 

and made ready for future HSIP applications (see Subtask 7.3). As part of these activities, we will 

calculate benefit/cost ratios to help inform the priority projects for which scopes and designs will be 

developed. We will document the methodology used for the benefit/cost ratio calculations and to the 

extent possible employ the methodology typically used in the HSIP grant application process. The 

resulting final list of locations and projects will identify those eligible for HSIP funds as well as other 

grant funding programs.  

Subtask 7.3 Develop Project Scopes, Concept Designs  

We will develop preliminary project scopes for up to ten (10) locations. We will lead a field study of each 

priority location, guiding Town staff and key stakeholders of each site to examine existing conditions and 

discuss the desirability and feasibility of the set of location-specific engineering enhancements identified 

at a planning level through the previous tasks. 

We will prepare concept design exhibits with current and proposed conditions, preliminary engineers’ 

estimates, and benefit-cost analysis summaries for the ten (10) prioritized projects, selected in 

coordination with the Town’s project manager. The scopes will be written to highlight key elements of a 

successful HSIP application, including: 

• Location maps and plans with project extents 

• Statement of need through data-based collision assessment 



A-11 

• Description of paired safety treatments and how treatments will address safety needs 

• Inventory of safety countermeasures previously deployed or programmed 

• Project costs and implementation schedule 

This information and work will be the starting point for the 30% Design Plan development in Task 9.  

Task 7 Deliverables 

• Memorandum detailing prioritized safety projects It will clearly identify: 

o Location map (beginning and ending points) of each project 

o Types of safety improvements 

o Benefit/Cost ratio for each project 

o Methodology for how the projects were selected and prioritized 

• The above memorandum will also be included in the final report, and supplemented with a table 

or similar method detailing the financial aspects of implementation, including, but not limited 

to, estimated total project cost, construction by year; expected funding sources and amount for 

each project. 

• Field Reviews of High-Priority Locations for Safety Projects 

Task 8 Draft Systemic Safety Analysis Report 

TASK 8 PURPOSE Develop and present to City Council the draft SSAR to obtain final comments before 

finalizing findings and documentation. 

Subtask 8.1 Prepare Draft Safety Plan and SSAR 

We will create the Draft SSAR following the Caltrans SSARP Guidelines as outlined in the RFP. Our 

project manager, Erin Ferguson, PE, will serve as the engineer of record. We will include in the report a 

vicinity map; crash characteristics, patterns, and trends; data gathering and data used; data analysis; 

countermeasures considered and selected; benefit summary; benefit/cost ratio calculations and 

methodology; and recommended safety projects including funding sources. 

Subtask 8.2 Prepare for and Attend City Council Meeting 

We will develop a PowerPoint presentation (and if needed additional supporting materials such as 

maps) to share, with City Council, the overall process of traffic safety and crash data analysis, local issues 

and concerns, selection and prioritization of countermeasures, Benefit/Cost ratios, and recommended 

projects documented in draft SSAR. We will record the input provided by City Council members to be 

able to incorporate into the Final Colma Safety Plan and SSAR, as appropriate. 

Task 8 Deliverables 

• PowerPoint presentation addressing overall process of traffic safety and crash data analysis, 

local issues and concerns, selection and prioritization of countermeasures, Benefit/Cost ratios, 

and recommended projects  

• Five (5) hard copies and electronic copies of the draft SSAR will be provided to the Town 



A-12 

Task 9 Preliminary Engineering Design (30% Design Plans) 

TASK 9 PURPOSE Develop 30% design plans and cost estimates for improvements at selected locations 

to inform HSIP grant applications as well as other potential funding sources. 

Subtask 9.1 Draft Design Plans and Cost Estimates 

We will perform preliminary engineering design of the selected projects for up to five (5) locations based 

on the priority list of locations and recommended countermeasures developed by the project team and 

consented by the City Council. Each location may be an intersection, a single block, a mid-block crossing, 

or similar discrete area. This area will be able to fit on a single 24”x36” plan sheet at 10 or 20-scale. 

We will then prepare 30% engineering design level layout plans at a convenient scale, with aerial photos 

as background, showing the preliminary design of recommended improvements. 

Improvements may include Complete Streets and Green Streets elements. Design will be sufficient to 

identify significant project cost components, potential right of way needs, and potential environmental 

constraints. Details such as pole and conductor schedules (for traffic signal plans), trench details, curb or 

planter wall details will not be included. Where there may be topographic survey available (i.e., Collins 

Road or Serramonte Boulevard), we will use this data to inform the preliminary design. We will not be 

including this topographic survey as a basemap or include related vertical design information. The 

backgrounds will be using aerial photos with design mostly based on site observations. 

We will coordinate with Town staff to determine the format and setup of plan sheets. Plan sheets may 

include Existing Conditions, Improvement Plan, and a Utility and Storm Drain Plan, depending on the 

type and complexity of the project. 

We will generate total project cost estimates of the recommended improvements at 30% engineering 

design level for each selected project. 

Subtask 9.2 Final Design Plans and Cost Estimates 

We will prepare the final design plan and cost estimates based on the Town’s review and comments on 

the draft versions provided. We assume that the Town will complete its review of the material within a 

one week time period. We will provide a record of how each comment provided was addressed. 

Task 9 Deliverables 

• Five (5) hard copies and electronic copies of the 30% engineering design level layout plans in 

PDF and AutoCAD formats and total project cost estimates including, but not limited to, right of 

way acquisitions, environmental review, engineering design and construction costs in Excel 

format 

Task 10 Final Systemic Safety Analysis Report 

TASK 10 PURPOSE Prepare the final Colma Road Safety Plan and SSAR that adheres to the Caltrans 

SSARP Guidelines, while meeting the needs of the Town. 



A-13 

Subtask 10.1 Finalize the Town Safety Plan and SSAR 

We will finalize the SSAR based on the input and comments received from the Draft SSAR developed in 

Task 8. We will create the Colma Road Safety Plan by comprehensively documenting the full process 

used to develop it including the comments received, as well as the response to those comments, from 

stakeholders and City Council as well those involved in its development. The report will meet Caltrans 

requirements and will be organized and prepared in a manner that is understood by the stakeholders 

whose input will help to shape and inform it. 

The final Colma Road Safety Plan and SSAR will also serve as the source of information from which the 

Town will be able to apply for HSIP grant funds to be able to implement the recommended projects. 

Therefore, it will detail the prioritized projects and include, per high-priority project: 

• Vicinity/location map; 

• Countermeasures being applied;  

• Crash data and diagrams; 

• Benefit/cost ratio calculations; 

• Project narrative; and 

• Preliminary engineering design (30% plans). 

Task 10 Deliverables 

• Five (5) hard copies and electronic copies of the final report for review and record. The final 

report must fulfill the reporting requirements for Caltrans SSAR Program 

• Revisions to the final SSAR documentation to address Caltrans comments, if needed 

Task 11 Prepare Sample HSIP Application 

TASK 11 PURPOSE Enable the Town to prepare successful HSIP grant applications to fund the prioritized 

safety improvement projects identified in the SSAR. 

Subtask 11.1 Develop a Sample HSIP Application 

We will develop an HSIP application for the highest priority project identified and developed through 

this SSAR project. We will provide the application to the Town for their submittal into the next HSIP 

grant cycle. We will also use the application as a basis for the training discussed in Subtask 11.2.  

Subtask 11.2 Conduct Training Workshop for HSIP Applications 

We will organize and conduct a training workshop for Town staff on how to prepare a success HSIP grant 

application. We will use the sample HSIP application to inform the training. The training materials will 

also include additional tips and tools (e.g., guidance for benefit/cost ratio calculations) to make it 

easier/more efficient for Town staff to prepare future HSIP applications.  

Task 11 Deliverables 

• One copy of sample HSIP grant application in Word document 

• One training workshop to demonstrate Town staff on how to prepare future HSIP grant 

applications using the most current available HSIP guidelines and grant application form. 



 

25977.00100\29530476.1  

EXHIBIT B 

Schedule of Charges/Payments 
 
Consultant will invoice Town on a monthly cycle.  Consultant will include with each invoice a 
detained progress report that indicates the amount of budget spent on each task.  Consultant will 
inform Town regarding any out-of-scope work being performed by Consultant.  This is a time-and-
materials contract. 
  



T
o

w
n

 o
f 

C
o

lm
a

 -
 S

y
st

e
m

ic
 S

a
fe

ty
 A

n
a

ly
si

s 
R

e
p

o
rt

K
it

te
ls

o
n

 A
ss

o
ci

a
te

s,
 I

n
c.

 T
e

a
m

 -
 C

o
st

 P
ro

p
o

sa
l

P
ro
je
c
t 
N
a
m
e
:

C
o
lm

a
 S

y
st

e
m

ic
 S

a
fe

ty
 A

n
a
ly

si
s 

R
e
p
o
rt

 (
S
S
A
R

)

P
ro
je
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r:

E
ri
n
 F

e
rg

u
so

n

K
A
I 
P
ro
je
c
t 
N
u
m
b
e
r:

2
1
6
9
8

D
a
te
:

A
u
g
 3

1
, 

2
0
1
7

E
ri
n
 F

e
rg

u
so

n
, 

P
E

B
ri
a
n
 R

a
y
, 

P
E

M
a
tt

 B
ra

u
g
h
to

n
M

ik
e
 A

ls
to

n
Ja

so
n
 M

a
n
sf

ie
ld

, 

P
E

B
ri
a
n
 S

co
tt

B
o
b
b
y
 L

in
, 

P
E

P
ro

je
ct

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r

S
r.

 P
ro

je
ct

 P
ri
n
ci

p
a
l

S
e
n
io

r 
P
la

n
n
e
r

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o
n
 A

n
a
ly

st
L
e
a
d
 D

e
si

g
n
 

E
n
g
in

e
e
r

P
ri
n
ci

p
a
l

E
n
g
in

e
e
r

1
P
ro
je
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

1
.1

P
ro

g
re

ss
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
s 

- 
U

p
 t

o
 6

 M
e
e
ti
n
g
s

2
4

8
2
4

5
6

$
9
,6

2
4

6
6

$
1
,1

5
9

6
2

$
1
0
,7

8
3

1
.2

F
in

a
liz

e
d
 P

ro
je

ct
 B

u
d
g
e
t 

a
n
d
 D

e
ta

ile
d
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

ch
e
d
u
le

8
2

1
0

$
1
,9

7
3

0
$
0

1
0

$
1
,9

7
3

1
.3

B
i-
W

e
e
k
ly

 C
h
e
ck

-I
n
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
ce

 C
a
lls

6
6

1
2

$
1
,8

9
6

0
$
0

1
2

$
1
,8

9
6

R
e
im

b
u
rs

a
b
le

 E
x
p
e
n
se

$
1
7
3

$
1
7
3

T
a
sk

 #
1
 -

 S
u
b
to

ta
l

3
8

1
0

3
0

0
7
8

$
1
3
,4

9
3

6
0

0
6

$
1
,3

3
2

8
4

$
1
4
,8

2
5

2
D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
R
e
v
ie
w

2
.1

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 D
o
cu

m
e
n
ts

 t
o
 R

e
v
ie

w
2

2
4

8
1
6

$
2
,3

0
6

0
$
0

1
6

$
2
,3

0
6

2
.2

C
o
n
d
u
ct

 D
o
cu

m
e
n
t 

R
e
v
ie

w
6

2
8

1
6

3
2

$
4
,4

6
7

0
$
0

3
2

$
4
,4

6
7

R
e
im

b
u
rs

a
b
le

 E
x
p
e
n
se

$
0

T
a
sk

 #
2
 -

 S
u
b
to

ta
l

8
4

1
2

2
4

4
8

$
6
,7

7
3

0
0

0
0

$
0

4
8

$
6
,7

7
3

3
D
a
ta
 C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n

3
.1

C
ra

sh
 D

a
ta

6
2

1
2

2
0

4
0

$
5
,4

4
8

0
$
0

4
0

$
5
,4

4
8

3
.2

R
o
a
d
w

a
y
 C

h
a
ra

ct
e
ri
st

ic
 D

a
ta

1
6

8
2
4

3
2

8
0

$
1
1
,7

5
1

0
$
0

8
0

$
1
1
,7

5
1

3
.3

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 S

y
st

e
m

ic
 C

o
u
n
te

rm
e
a
su

re
s 

o
n
 t

h
e
 S

tr
e
e
t 

N
e
tw

o
rk

4
4

8
1
2

2
8

$
4
,1

6
3

0
$
0

2
8

$
4
,1

6
3

3
.4

T
ra

ff
ic

 C
o
u
n
t 

D
a
ta

6
2

8
1
6

3
2

$
4
,4

6
7

0
$
0

3
2

$
4
,4

6
7

R
e
im

b
u
rs

a
b
le

 E
x
p
e
n
se

$
7
,5

9
0

$
7
,5

9
0

T
a
sk

 #
3
 -

 S
u
b
to

ta
l

3
2

1
6

5
2

8
0

1
8
0

$
3
3
,4

1
9

0
0

0
0

$
0

1
8
0

$
3
3
,4

1
9

4
D
a
ta
 A
n
a
ly
s
is

4
.1

T
o
w

n
 C

ra
sh

 D
a
ta

 A
n
la

y
si

s
1
2

6
3
2

4
8

9
8

$
1
3
,3

6
9

0
$
0

9
8

$
1
3
,3

6
9

4
.2

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 R
is

k
 F

a
ct

o
rs

 a
n
d
 P

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
C
o
u
n
te

rm
e
a
su

re
s

1
6

8
2
0

4
0

8
4

$
1
2
,1

1
6

0
$
0

8
4

$
1
2
,1

1
6

4
.3

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 I
n
it
ia

l 
P
ri
o
ri
ty

 L
o
ca

ti
o
n
s 

b
a
se

d
 o

n
 R

is
k
 F

a
ct

o
rs

 a
n
d
 C

ra
sh

 D
a
ta

1
2

6
2
0

2
4

6
2

$
9
,0

7
9

0
$
0

6
2

$
9
,0

7
9

R
e
im

b
u
rs

a
b
le

 E
x
p
e
n
se

$
0

T
a
sk

 #
4
 -

 S
u
b
to

ta
l

4
0

2
0

7
2

1
1
2

2
4
4

$
3
4
,5

6
5

0
0

0
0

$
0

2
4
4

$
3
4
,5

6
5

5
C
o
u
n
te
rm

e
a
s
u
re
 S
e
le
c
ti
o
n

5
.1

S
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

W
o
rk

sh
o
p
 #

1
1
6

1
2

2
0

1
6

6
4

$
1
0
,4

4
3

0
$
0

6
4

$
1
0
,4

4
3

5
.2

E
n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g
 C

o
u
n
te

rm
e
a
su

re
s

1
6

1
2

1
8

2
4

7
0

$
1
1
,0

7
5

0
$
0

7
0

$
1
1
,0

7
5

5
.3

N
o
n
-E

n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g
 C

o
u
n
te

rm
e
a
su

re
s

8
4

1
6

1
6

4
4

$
6
,4

0
8

0
$
0

4
4

$
6
,4

0
8

R
e
im

b
u
rs

a
b
le

 E
x
p
e
n
se

$
0

T
a
sk

 #
5
 -

 S
u
b
to

ta
l

4
0

2
8

5
4

5
6

1
7
8

$
2
7
,9

2
6

0
0

0
0

$
0

1
7
8

$
2
7
,9

2
6

6
R
e
c
e
iv
e
 C
o
n
s
e
n
s
u
s
 f
ro
m
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il

6
.1

C
o
m

p
ile

 S
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

In
p
u
t 

a
n
d
 U

p
d
a
te

 S
a
fe

ty
 R

e
co

m
m

e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s

6
4

1
2

1
6

3
8

$
5
,5

1
0

0
$
0

3
8

$
5
,5

1
0

6
.2

P
re

se
n
t 

U
p
d
a
ti
n
g
 I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
8

2
1
0

$
1
,9

7
3

0
$
0

1
0

$
1
,9

7
3

R
e
im

b
u
rs

a
b
le

 E
x
p
e
n
se

$
0

T
a
sk

 #
6
 -

 S
u
b
to

ta
l

1
4

6
1
2

1
6

4
8

$
7
,4

8
3

0
0

0
0

$
0

4
8

$
7
,4

8
3

7
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 S
a
fe
ty
 P
ro
je
c
ts

7
.1

F
in

a
liz

e
 a

n
d
 P

ri
o
ri
ti
ze

 C
o
u
n
te

rm
e
a
su

re
s 

a
n
d
 S

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

W
o
rk

sh
o
p
 #

2
1
6

1
0

2
0

2
4

7
0

$
1
0
,8

3
1

0
$
0

7
0

$
1
0
,8

3
1

7
.2

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 P

ri
o
ri
ti
ze

 L
o
ca

ti
o
n
s 

fo
r 

C
o
u
n
te

rm
e
a
su

re
s 

a
n
d
 C

a
lc

u
la

te
 B

e
n
e
fi
t/

C
o
st

 

R
a
ti
o
s

1
6

1
2

2
0

3
2

8
0

$
1
2
,2

3
9

0
$
0

8
0

$
1
2
,2

3
9

7
.3

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

co
p
e
s,

 C
o
n
ce

p
t 

D
e
si

g
n
s 

fo
r 

U
p
 t

o
 5

 L
o
ca

ti
o
n
s

2
0

1
8

2
8

4
6

1
1
2

$
1
7
,1

3
6

8
8

$
1
,5

4
6

1
2
0

$
1
8
,6

8
2

R
e
im

b
u
rs

a
b
le

 E
x
p
e
n
se

$
0

T
a
sk

 #
7
 -

 S
u
b
to

ta
l

5
2

4
0

6
8

1
0
2

2
6
2

$
4
0
,2

0
5

8
0

0
8

$
1
,5

4
6

2
7
0

$
4
1
,7

5
1

8
D
ra
ft
 S
y
s
te
m
ic
 S
a
fe
ty
 A
n
a
ly
s
is
 R
e
p
o
rt

8
.1

P
re

p
a
re

 D
ra

ft
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 S

S
A
R

1
6

8
3
2

4
8

1
0
4

$
1
4
,6

1
1

0
$
0

1
0
4

$
1
4
,6

1
1

8
.2

P
re

p
a
re

 f
o
r 

a
n
d
 A

tt
e
n
d
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
M

e
e
ti
n
g

1
6

8
1
2

1
2

4
8

$
7
,9

1
0

0
$
0

4
8

$
7
,9

1
0

R
e
im

b
u
rs

a
b
le

 E
x
p
e
n
se

$
0

T
a
sk

 #
8
 -

 S
u
b
to

ta
l

3
2

1
6

4
4

6
0

1
5
2

$
2
2
,5

2
1

0
0

0
0

$
0

1
5
2

$
2
2
,5

2
1

9
P
re
li
m
in
a
ry
 E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 D
e
s
ig
n
 (
3
0
%

 D
e
s
ig
n
 P
la
n
s
)

9
.1

D
ra

ft
 D

e
si

g
n
 P

la
n
s 

a
n
d
 C

o
st

 E
st

im
a
te

s
1
2

6
1
8

$
3
,7

2
5

2
8

1
0

1
2
0

1
5
8

$
2
3
,5

8
8

1
7
6

$
2
7
,3

1
3

9
.2

F
in

a
l 
D

e
si

g
n
 P

la
n
s 

a
n
d
 C

o
st

 E
st

im
a
te

s
8

4
1
2

$
2
,4

8
3

1
2

6
7
2

9
0

$
1
3
,2

2
5

1
0
2

$
1
5
,7

0
8

R
e
im

b
u
rs

a
b
le

 E
x
p
e
n
se

$
0

T
a
sk

 #
9
 -

 S
u
b
to

ta
l

2
0

1
0

0
0

3
0

$
6
,2

0
8

4
0

1
6

1
9
2

2
4
8

$
3
6
,8

1
3

2
7
8

$
4
3
,0

2
1

1
0

F
in
a
l 
S
y
s
te
m
ic
 S
a
fe
ty
 A
n
a
ly
s
is
 R
e
p
o
rt

1
0
.1

F
in

a
liz

e
 t

h
e
 T

o
w

n
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 S

S
A
R

8
5

1
2

1
6

4
1

$
6
,1

3
0

0
$
0

4
1

$
6
,1

3
0

R
e
im

b
u
rs

a
b
le

 E
x
p
e
n
se

$
0

T
a
sk

 #
1
0
 -

 S
u
b
to

ta
l

8
5

1
2

1
6

4
1

$
6
,1

3
0

0
0

0
0

$
0

4
1

$
6
,1

3
0

1
1

P
re
p
a
re
 S
a
m
p
le
 H
S
IP
 A
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n

1
1
.1

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 S
a
m

p
le

 H
S
IP

 A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

8
4

1
2

1
6

4
0

$
5
,8

7
5

0
$
0

4
0

$
5
,8

7
5

1
1
.2

C
o
n
d
u
ct

 T
ra

in
in

g
 W

o
rk

sh
o
p
 f

o
r 

H
S
IP

 A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

1
2

4
1
2

8
3
6

$
5
,7

0
9

0
$
0

3
6

$
5
,7

0
9

R
e
im

b
u
rs

a
b
le

 E
x
p
e
n
se

$
0

T
a
sk

 #
1
1
 -

 S
u
b
to

ta
l

2
0

8
2
4

2
4

7
6

$
1
1
,5

8
5

0
0

0
0

$
0

7
6

$
1
1
,5

8
5

T
O

T
A
L
 H

O
U

R
S

3
0
4

1
6
3

3
8
0

4
9
0

1
3
3
7

$
2
1
0
,3

0
9
.2

9
5
4

1
6

1
9
2

2
6
2

$
3
9
,6

9
0
.9

4

L
A
B
O

R
 R

A
T
E

$
1
8
2
.9

0
$
2
5
5
.0

1
$
1
3
3
.0

9
$
1
1
2
.2

0
$
1
9
3
.2

5
$
2
5
9
.0

2
$
1
2
9
.8

9

L
A
B
O

R
 C

O
S
T

$
5
5
,6

0
2

$
4
1
,5

6
6

$
5
0
,5

7
2

$
5
4
,9

7
8

$
1
0
,4

3
5

$
4
,1

4
4

$
2
4
,9

3
8

1
,5
9
9

$
2
4
2
,2
3
7

$
7
,7
6
3

T
a
s
k

It
e
m

U
n
it
 C
o
s
t

U
n
it

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
U
n
it
s

T
o
ta
l

1
.1

M
ile

a
g

e
 f

o
r 

T
ra

ve
l t

o
 M

e
e

ti
n

g
s

$
0

.5
4

p
e

r 
m

ile
3

2
0

$
1

7
2

.8
0

3
.4

T
u
b
e
 C

o
u
n
ts

 -
 V

o
lu

m
e
, 

C
la

ss
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
, 

S
p
e
e
d
 f

o
r 

7
-d

a
y
s,

 2
4
-h

o
u
rs

 p
e
r 

d
a
y
, 

1
5
 

m
in

u
te

 i
n
cr

e
m

e
n
ts

$
4
5
0

p
e
r 

lo
ca

ti
o
n

1
3

$
5
,8

5
0

3
.4

In
te

rs
e
ct

io
n
 M

u
lt
im

o
d
a
l 
T
u
rn

in
g
 M

o
v
e
m

e
n
t 

C
o
u
n
ts

 f
o
r 

T
w

o
, 

T
w

o
 -

H
o
u
r 

P
e
a
k
 

P
e
ri
o
d
s

$
2
9
0

p
e
r 

in
te

rs
e
ct

io
n

6
$
1
,7

4
0

$
7

,7
6

2
.8

0

E
x
p
e
n
s
e
s

T
O
T
A
L
 P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 B
U
D
G
E
T

$
2
5
0
,0
0
0

T
o

ta
l 

E
xp

e
n

se
s

H
o
u
rs

C
o
s
t

T
O
T
A
L
 H
O
U
R
S

T
O
T
A
L
 L
A
B
O
R

T
O
T
A
L
 R
E
IM

B
U
R
S
A
B
L
E
S

T
o

ta
l 

T
e

a
m

T
a
s
k

K
it
te
ls
o
n
 &
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
, 
In
c
.

B
K
F
 E
n
g
in
e
e
rs

S
U
B
T
A
S
K
/

T
A
S
K
 H
O
U
R
S

S
U
B
T
A
S
K
/

T
A
S
K
 C
O
S
T

H
o
u
rs

C
o
s
t



 

25977.00100\29530476.1  

EXHIBIT C 

Activity Schedule 

 
 
 



C-1 

 

COLMA SSAR PROJECT SCHEDULE 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report re DCPLA Grant Funding FY 2017-18 Page 1 of 3 

STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  William C. Norton, Interim City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 27, 2017 

SUBJECT: Grant Funding Request for Daly City Public Library Associates 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A GRANT TO DALY CITY PUBLIC LIBRARY ASSOCIATES, 
FINDING THAT THE GRANT SERVES A PUBLIC PURPOSE, AND AUTHORIZING A 
CONTRACT WITH DALY CITY PUBLIC LIBRARY ASSOCIATES FOR THE USE OF TOWN 
FUNDS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed resolution would find that the Daly City Public Library Associates has met all the 
criteria and is therefore eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma, that the approved 
grant serves a public purpose and is not a gift of public funds, and that the grant should be 
approved and authorized as follows: 

Grantee Proposed Grant Amount 
Daly City Public Library Associates $2,000 

This separate action is required for Daly City Public Library Associates due to a conflict of 
interest for one Council Member. Other funding requests will be heard under a separate agenda 
item.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

The 2017-18 budget includes a total of $113,000 for grant funding (spread through various 
departments).  

BACKGROUND 

The Town’s process for non-profit funding requests, as outlined in subchapter 4.03 of the Colma 
Administrative Code, spells out several requirements for organizations to be funded by the 
Town.  

Grants may be made to three types of eligible organizations: 501(c)(3) charities, government 
entities, and the Chamber of Commerce. In addition, the organization must meet a basic rough 

Item #4



Staff Report re DCPLA Grant Funding FY 2017-18 Page 2 of 3 
 

proportionality requirement which means: the organization’s mission must include providing a 
benefit to a defined geographical area that encompasses the Town of Colma (for example, a 
food pantry that serves residents of San Mateo County); the organization’s governing board 
must reflect the diverse interests of the community; and the organization must have policies 
and procedures to assure that the grant’s purposes are met. 

Grants cannot be given to fund existing debts; to a religious organization unless it is for a 
general need and the project does not promote the teachings of a particular church; or to 
support a political campaign. Grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no 
obligation or commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee.  

To help guide the nonprofits in identifying a public purpose in their requested program and 
assist the Council in making that determination, five categories of qualifying programs or 
projects are established in the Administrative Code. To qualify for a grant, the program or 
project to be funded must: 

(1) Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;  

(2) Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or  
Integrated Care Services; 

(3) Educate and engage residents; 

(4) Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business 
in the Town; or 

(5) Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a service that the 
Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

The $113,000 in available funding is broken down into three discrete budget line items: 
$65,000 allocated to the General Services budget specifically for economic development 
promotion (line item Grants); $40,000 allocated to the City Council budget under the line item 
Donations; and $8,000 allocated to the Planning Department budget under the line item Legal 
Mandates.  

ANALYSIS 

The Council must make two determinations with respect to this application: first, that the 
applicant meets the criteria for an eligible organization set forth in section 4.03.030 of the 
Colma Administrative Code, and second, that each proposed use of funds will serve a public 
purpose, as set forth in section 4.03.020 of the Colma Administrative Code. There is substantial 
evidence in the application to support findings on each of these determinations. 

Findings of Organizational Eligibility 

Daly City Public Library Associates (“Library Associates”) is registered with the California 
Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a 
letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section code 501(c)(3). Its 
mission is to raise private funds to supplement public funding of the four branch libraries in Daly 



Staff Report re DCPLA Grant Funding FY 2017-18 Page 3 of 3 
 

City. The Town of Colma is located within its service area. Colma residents may borrow 
materials from any of the Daly City branch libraries. Thus, Colma residents are benefited by the 
support provided to the Daly City Library by Library Associates.  

Library Associates has adopted and follows policies and procedures to ensure that the terms 
and conditions of all grants are satisfied. Further, it has not participated or intervened in any 
political campaign (including publishing or distributing campaign statements) on behalf of or in 
opposition to any candidate for public office within the past 36 months. 

Findings of Public Purpose 

The expenditure of public funds to assist in the purchase of basic library materials for the library 
system, as requested by the Daly City Public Library Associates, could be provided by the Town, 
but the Town has chosen otherwise. Specifically, the Town could provide these same services 
through its Recreation Services program. In this case, the Town would likely expend the 
amount of the grant to provide these services.  

Values 

By providing public funds for charitable purposes, the Council is being compassionate to the 
needs of others. At the same time, by adhering to the Council’s policies and procedures, the 
Council is acting with responsibility. 

Alternatives 

The Council could fund the Daly City Public Library Associates at a level higher or lower than the 
requested amount. Increasing the funding, however, would impact the remaining available 
grant funding.  

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the Council adopt the attached resolution which sets grant funding levels at 
the requested amount for the Daly City Public Library Associates. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution 
B. Funding request 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Res. 2017-___, DCPLA Grant Funding 2017 (Adopted ______) Page 1 of 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-____ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A GRANT TO DALY CITY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
ASSOCIATES, FINDING THAT THE GRANT SERVES A PUBLIC PURPOSE, AND 

AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH DALY CITY PUBLIC LIBRARY ASSOCIATES 
FOR THE USE OF TOWN FUNDS 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background

(a) Pursuant to subchapter 4.03 of the Colma Administrative Code and the police power
granted to cities by the California Constitution, the Town of Colma may expend public money by 
making grants upon finding that the organization is eligible for grant funding, the expenditure 
will serve a public purpose, and for an expenditure that provides benefits to the public and 
private persons at the same time, there is a direct and substantial benefit to the public with 
only an incidental benefit to private persons.  

(b) To be eligible, an organization must be an IRC 501(c)(3) charity, a governmental entity, 
or a chamber of commerce. In addition, the organization’s mission must include providing a 
benefit to a defined geographical area that encompasses the Town of Colma, the organization’s 
governing board must reflect the diverse interests of the community, and the organization must 
have policies and procedures to assure that the grant’s purposes are met. 

(c) Grants cannot be given to fund existing debts; to a religious organization unless it is for 
a general need and the project does not promote the teachings of a particular church; or to 
support a political campaign. Grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no 
obligation or commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee.  

(d) An organization may submit a request for determination of eligibility for grant funding, 
which shall include documents and information described in section 4.03.050 of the Colma 
Administrative Code.  Each year after a determination of eligibility has been made, an 
organization need only update each item of new or changed information. 

(e) An organization may submit an application for a charitable donation for each program or 
project to be funded. 

2. Findings of Eligibility for Grant Funding

The City Council has reviewed the funding requests from Daly City Public Library Associates and 
finds as follows: 

(a) Daly City Public Library Associates (“Library Associates”) is eligible for grant funding 
from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion. Library Associates is registered with the California Attorney General as a 
public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the 
IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section code 501(c)(3). Its mission is to 

Attachment A



Res. 2017-___, DCPLA Grant Funding 2017 (Adopted ______) Page 2 of 3 

raise private funds to supplement public funding of the four branch libraries in Daly City. 
The Town of Colma is located within its service area. Colma residents may borrow 
materials from any of the Daly City branch libraries. Thus, Colma residents are benefited 
by the support provided to the Daly City Library by Library Associates.   

(b) Library Associates has adopted and follows policies and procedures to ensure that the 
terms and conditions of all grants are satisfied, and none has participated or intervened in any 
political campaign (including publishing or distributing campaign statements) on behalf of or in 
opposition to any candidate for public office within the past 36 months. 

3. Findings of Public Purpose 

The City Council has reviewed the application for grant funds from the Daly City Public Library 
Associates and finds as follows: 

(a) A grant in the amount of $2,000 to the Daly City Public Library Associates will serve a 
public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to assist in the purchase of basic library 
materials for the library system, as requested by the Daly City Public Library Associates, 
could be provided by the Town but the Town has chosen otherwise. Specifically, the 
Town could provide these same services through its Recreation Services program. In 
that case, the Town would likely expend the amount of the grant to provide these 
services.   

(b) None of these grants will be used to fund existing obligations, debts or liabilities, 
national and regional charitable organizations, religious organizations, a political campaign, or 
lobbying activities. The grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no 
obligation or commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee and that the grantee 
will not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, gender, age, weight, height, sexual 
orientation, marital status, national origin, disability or other characteristic protected by law. 

4. Order 

(a) The City Council approves grant funding of $2,000 to the Daly City Public Library 
Associates.  

(b) The Grantee must execute a Grant Agreement with the Town before any funds may be 
paid. The Grant Agreement shall include a statement of the goal or purpose of the Grant, a time 
within which the goal is expected to be achieved, and reporting requirements. 

/ /  

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

 



Res. 2017-___, DCPLA Grant Funding 2017 (Adopted ______) Page 3 of 3 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2017-___ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on September 27, 2017 by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      

Joanne F. del Rosario       

John Irish Goodwin      

Diana Colvin      

Voting Tally      
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 

 

      Attest:  ____________________________ 
       Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Attachment B









Staff Report re: FY 2017-18 Non-profit Funding  Page 1 of 10 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  William C. Norton, Interim City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 27, 2017 

SUBJECT: FY 2017-18 Non-profit Funding 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION DETERMINING ELIGIBILITY FOR GRANT FUNDING, APPROVING GRANTS 
TO ELIGIBLE ORGANIZATIONS, FINDING THAT EACH APPROVED GRANT SERVES A 
PUBLIC PURPOSE, AND AUTHORIZING CONTRACTS WITH EACH ELIGIBLE 
ORGANIZATION FOR THE USE OF TOWN FUNDS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed resolution would find that each of the following organizations has met all the 
criteria and is therefore eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma, that each approved 
grant serves a public purpose and is not a gift of public funds, and that grants should be 
approved and authorized as proposed by Staff: 

Grantee Amount Funded 
FY 2016-17 

FY 2017-18 
Grantee Request 

FY 2017-18 
Staff Proposed 
Grant Amount 

ALLICE N/A $1,800 $1,800 
Clinic by the Bay $2,000 $3,000 $2,000 
Colma - Daly City Chamber of 
Commerce $40,000 $45,000 $40,000 
Community Gatepath $5,000 $10,000 $6,000 
Daly City Peninsula Partnership 
Collaborative $15,000 $20,000 $15,000 
Daly City/Colma 4-H Club N/A $5,000 $0 
Daly City Youth Health Center $5,000 $7,500 $6,000 
Human Investment Project (HIP 
Housing) 1 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 
Jefferson Union School District 
(Wilderness School) $3,000 $4,500 $3,000 
LifeMoves (formerly InnVision 
Shelter Network) 1 $3,000 $5,000 $3,000 

1 Funding to come from Legal Mandates line item in Planning Department budget 

Item #5



Staff Report re: FY 2017-18 Non-profit Funding   Page 2 of 10 

Grantee Amount Funded 
FY 2016-17 

FY 2017-18 
Grantee Request 

FY 2017-18 
Staff Proposed 
Grant Amount 

North Peninsula Food Pantry & 
Dining Center of Daly City $12,500 $12,500 $12,500  
Peninsula Conflict Resolution 
Center $1,313 $1,312 $1,313  
San Mateo Community College 
Foundation (Skyline College 
President's Innovation Fund) $600 $5,000 $1,000  
SMC Conservation District N/A $10,504 $4,000 
SMC Jobs for Youth $500 $1,500 $1,000  
Sitike Counseling Center $6,000 $8,000 $6,000  
Sustainable San Mateo County $3,000 $5,000 $3,000  
West Bay Alano Club  $4,000 $4,000 $0  

TOTALS $107,9132 $156,6172 $112,6132 

A total of $156,617 has been requested by the various entities (including the Daly City Public 
Library Associates, which was addressed in a separate agenda item). 

If Council approves the funding levels as proposed by Staff, the total amount funded will be 
under budget by $387.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

The 2017-18 budget includes a total of $113,000 for grant funding (spread through various 
departments).  

BACKGROUND 

The Town’s process for non-profit funding requests, as outlined in subchapter 4.03 of the Colma 
Administrative Code, spells out several requirements for organizations to be funded by the 
Town.  

Grants may be made to three types of eligible organizations: IRS 501(c)(3) charities, 
government entities, and the Chamber of Commerce. In addition, the organization must meet a 
basic rough proportionality requirement which means: the organization’s mission must include 
providing a benefit to a defined geographical area that encompasses the Town of Colma (for 
example, a food pantry that serves residents of San Mateo County); the organization’s 
governing board must reflect the diverse interests of the community; and the organization must 
have policies and procedures to assure that the grant’s purposes are met. 

Grants cannot be given to fund existing debts; to a religious organization unless it is for a 
general need and the project does not promote the teachings of a particular church; or to 
support a political campaign. Grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no 
obligation or commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee.  
                                           
2 Note this amount includes $2,000 in funding for DCPLA.  



Staff Report re: FY 2017-18 Non-profit Funding   Page 3 of 10 

To help guide the nonprofits in identifying a public purpose in their requested program and 
assist the Council in making that determination, five categories of qualifying programs or 
projects are established in the Administrative Code. To qualify for a grant, the program or 
project to be funded must: 

(1) Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;  

(2) Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or  
Integrated Care Services; 

(3) Educate and engage residents; 

(4) Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business 
in the Town; or 

(5) Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a service that the 
Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

The $113,000 in available funding is broken down into three discrete budget line items: 
$40,000 allocated to the General Services budget specifically for economic development 
promotion (line item Grants); $65,000 allocated to the City Council budget under the line item 
Donations; and $8,000 allocated to the Planning Department budget under the line item Legal 
Mandates. 

For some entities, staff’s proposed grant amounts may differ from the funding that was 
approved in Fiscal Year 2016-17. Of course the City Council has ultimate discretion regarding 
the actual amount of funding granted; however, if City Council opts to increase the proposed 
funding beyond the available budget, a budget amendment will need to be processed at a 
future meeting.  

ANALYSIS 

The Council must make two determinations with respect to each application: first, that the 
applicant meets the criteria for an eligible organization set forth in section 4.03.030 of the 
Colma Administrative Code, and second, that each proposed use of funds will serve a public 
purpose, as set forth in section 4.03.020 of the Colma Administrative Code. There is substantial 
evidence in each application to support findings on each of these determinations. 

Findings of Organizational Eligibility 

Through a memorandum of understanding ALLICE Kumares and Kumpares, aka ALLICE  is 
part of the Pilipino Bayanihan Resource Center (PBRC) of San Mateo County. Its mission is to 
engage community-minded individuals and organizations—nonprofit and corporate, private and 
public—in a movement to educate the public about healthy and safe relationships. The Town 
benefits from the education of the community on how to distinguish between healthy and 
abusive relationships, and the availability of pertinent resources to help those in need. The 
grant funds will be used to support an outreach event. If City Council approves funding, PBRC 
will have to provide an Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) section 501(c)(3) letter and a current 
status with the California Attorney General as a condition for funds to be disbursed. 



Staff Report re: FY 2017-18 Non-profit Funding   Page 4 of 10 

Clinic by the Bay is registered with the Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit 
corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from 
tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to operate a free, volunteer-powered health 
clinic that provides high-quality, primary care to the hard working uninsured men and women in 
its service area. The Town of Colma is within its service area. The Town benefits by having low 
income adults, in the Town and in the surrounding area, served by free primary medical care 
from Clinic by the Bay.  The Town also benefits as Clinic by the Bay provides residents with 
meaningful volunteer opportunities to be part of a neighborhood solution to health care issues.  
The grant funds will be used to expand primary care, continue to offer Saturday hours, and 
expand chronic disease management programs.  

Greater Colma-Daly City Chamber of Commerce, aka Colma/ Daly City Chamber of 
Commerce (“Chamber”), is registered with the California Attorney General as a mutual 
benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a copy of a letter from the 
Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) stating that it is exempt from tax under Internal Revenue 
Code (“IRC”) section 501(c)(6). Its mission is to encourage business development and 
networking, and to provide members with useful information and services. The Chamber serves 
commercial establishments within the Town of Colma and the City of Daly City. The Town of 
Colma is located within the Chamber’s membership area. The Chamber takes an active 
leadership role in promoting economic, professional, commercial and civic vitality for the Town 
of Colma and surrounding communities. The Chamber’s programs and activities benefit its 
members by providing them with business development and networking opportunities as well as 
educational materials. These programs and activities improve the quality of services rendered to 
the public by the Chamber’s members and help increase its members’ sales. In turn, improved 
services and increased sales will increase the Town’s tax revenues, which ultimately inure to the 
benefit of all residents and businesses located in the Town. 

Community Gatepath is registered with the Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit 
corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax 
under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to provide greater independence for persons with 
special needs and disabilities through education and support services that empower them. The 
Town of Colma is within its service area. The Town benefits by having people with disabilities 
becoming active members of the community, spending money at local businesses, volunteering 
and working in the Town.  

Daly City Peninsula Partnership Collaborative is registered with the Attorney General as a 
public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS stating 
that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to guide collaborative 
efforts and connect the community to services that promote well-being. The Partnership runs 
two programs that would receive funding through the granting process: The Daly City 
Community Service Center and the Partnership’s Family Resource Center. The Community 
Center serves low income individuals and families in danger of becoming homeless and those 
needing assistance through emergency shelter or housing assistance grants. The Family 
Resource Center works with families, early childhood education professionals and caregivers to 
promote healthy development, academic readiness and safety for children.  

Daly City Youth Health Center, as part of the Jefferson Union High School District (JUHSD), 
is a California governmental entity. The school-linked program’s mission statement is to provide 
safe, respectful, comprehensive health services and education to underserved teens and young 



Staff Report re: FY 2017-18 Non-profit Funding   Page 5 of 10 

adults, preparing them for a healthy adulthood. The community wellness center’s activities are 
directed by the JUHSD Board of Directors and Advisory Council. The Center served 14 Colma 
youth and their families two or more times during the 2015-16 school year. In addition, five 
youth from Colma became peer health educators in schools and were trained on leadership 
development and public speaking skills. The Town of Colma is within its service area. The Town 
benefits by the Center providing accessibility and availability of integrated wellness services to 
youth, especially those who belong to the low-income and immigrant populations residing in 
Colma. The Town also benefits by the Center providing counseling for Colma youth who are 
suffering from mental health issues, substance use and abuse, and suicidal ideation to help 
youth better cope with their challenges in life.    

HIP Housing Development Corporation is registered with the Attorney General as a public 
benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is 
exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to improve the housing and lives of 
people in the community. HIP Housing enables people with special needs to live independent, 
self-sufficient lives in decent, safe, low-cost homes. The Town of Colma is within its service 
area.  

Jefferson Union High School District (Community Environmental Education 
Program) is a California governmental entity. The Community Environmental Education 
Program - Susan B. Anthony School Project is a joint program administered by Jefferson Union 
High School District. Its mission is to teach high school students leadership skills and 
responsibility and to provide elementary school children with field trip chaperones, on-site 
tutors, and positive role models. The project consists of field trips, hiking and camping. Many 
students from the Town of Colma attend Jefferson High School or Susan B. Anthony Elementary 
School, and the number varies from year to year.  

LifeMoves (formerly InnVision Shelter Network) is a nonprofit corporation and has 
provided the Town with a copy of a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under 
IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to help homeless families and individuals in the area and 
assist them in returning to permanent housing and self-sufficiency.  The Town of Colma is 
located within LifeMoves’ service area. The Town benefits from LifeMoves’ work as low-income 
and homeless individuals and families in the area are provided support services to reduce the 
homeless population in the area.   

North Peninsula Food Pantry and Dining Center of Daly City (“Food Pantry”) is 
registered with the California Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has 
provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC 
section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to provide nutrition and sustenance to anyone in need. The 
Town Colma is located within its service area. Any Colma resident in need may obtain food from 
the Food Pantry, but the Food Pantry does not track the residency locations of its clients.  

Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center (“PCRC”) is registered with the California Attorney 
General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the 
IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to promote 
positive collaboration and active engagement among people. It facilitates group discussions and 
trains people in conflict resolution. The Town of Colma is located within its service area, which 
is all of San Mateo County. PCRC will provide free or low-cost information and referral services, 
mediation services, and training to all Colma residents. 



Staff Report re: FY 2017-18 Non-profit Funding   Page 6 of 10 

San Mateo Community College Foundation (Skyline College President's Innovation 
Fund) is registered with the Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has 
provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC 
section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to promote student success and nourish project innovation and 
excellence by providing special financial support for the three community colleges in the 
District. In particular, the Foundation seeks grant funds for the President’s Innovation Fund 
which is to provide start-up funding and financial support to faculty and staff devising 
innovative programs and services.  The Town of Colma is within the geographic area that the 
Foundation serves. The Foundation estimates that 24% of students registered at Skyline 
College live in the Colma/Daly City region.  

San Mateo County (Jobs for Youth Program) is a California governmental entity. Jobs for 
Youth is a program sponsored by San Mateo County. Jobs’ mission is to provide all youths with 
employment services that will assist in gaining necessary job skills. The Town of Colma is 
located within its service area. Jobs For Youth served five youth through the Colma and Daly 
City region.  

San Mateo County Resource Conservation District (San Mateo County RCD) is a 
California governmental entity. San Mateo County RCD is a special district that helps people 
protect, conserve and restore natural resources through non-regulatory technical assistance. 
The Town of Colma is located within its service area. San Mateo County RCD has previously 
worked with the Town of Colma by providing project ideas and services with focus on cemetery 
irrigation efficiency.      

Sitike Counseling Center (“Sitike”) is registered with the California Attorney General as a 
public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS stating 
that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to provide community-
based substance-abuse counseling and education services. The Town of Colma is located within 
its service area. Sitike has not provided any information about the residency locations of its 
clients. 

Sustainable San Mateo County is registered with the California Attorney General as a public 
benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that 
it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to stimulate community action 
on economic, environmental and social issues by providing accurate, timely and empowering 
information.  In general, the funds will be used to support the research and production of the 
Indicators for a Sustainable San Mateo County Report.  The Indicators Report evaluates the 
health of San Mateo County and its cities in terms of sustainability and provides a mean for city 
officials, non-profits, and business leaders, to make educated decisions when considering 
sustainable policies. The Town of Colma is within the geographic area served by Sustainable 
San Mateo County and the Indicators Report covers the area where the Town is located. 

Each of these organizations has adopted and follows policies and procedures to ensure that the 
terms and conditions of all grants are satisfied, and none has participated or intervened in any 
political campaign (including publishing or distributing campaign statements) on behalf of or in 
opposition to any candidate for public office within the past 36 months. 



Staff Report re: FY 2017-18 Non-profit Funding   Page 7 of 10 

Daly City/Colma 4-H Club failed to provide verification that the club is an active nonprofit 
organization. The IRS 501(c)(3) letter was unclear and staff reached out for verification but 
received no response. As such, the Town cannot consider its application.   

West Bay Alano Club did not meet all of the Town’s legal standards for funding non-profit 
entities and did not fulfill the obligations of the grant agreement for FY 2016-17. As such, the 
Town cannot legally consider its application.   

Findings of Public Purpose 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for an outreach event, as requested by ALLICE 
Kumares and Kumpares, aka ALLICE, will provide education about the dynamics of healthy 
and abusive relationships. The benefit to the public is substantial as the organization provides 
community-building by strengthening individuals and families through education.     

The expenditure of public funds to pay for healthcare services to low income, working and 
uninsured adults, as requested by Clinic by the Bay, will provide an identifiable benefit to the 
community at large. The Town and the community at large will benefit from increased 
healthcare services in the form of expanded primary care, Saturday hours for services, and an 
expansion of the chronic disease management program.  Low income, working and uninsured 
adults will have better access to medical care, ensuring the health and vitality of the community 
and of Town residents. All of these services are readily accessible to Colma residents and the 
public benefit is substantial as the Town and the community all benefit from a healthy populace.   

The expenditure of public funds to pay for networking opportunities, business grand openings, 
business promotions, facilitating workshops for businesses, and operational costs, as requested 
by the Greater Colma-Daly City Chamber of Commerce, aka Colma/ Daly City 
Chamber of Commerce could be provided by the Town but the Town has chosen otherwise. 
Specifically, the Town could provide these same services as part of its economic development 
program. In that case, the Town would likely expend the amount of the grant in staff time and 
incidental materials to provide these services.  

The expenditure of public funds to pay for education and support services offered by 
Community Gatepath to persons with special needs will provide an identifiable benefit to the 
Colma community at large. The Town benefits by having people with disabilities become active 
members of the community through recreational, educational and volunteer opportunities with 
businesses in the Town. The services offered by Community Gatepath are readily accessible to 
Colma residents and the public benefit is substantial as people with disabilities have the 
opportunity to learn and thrive. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for shelter and supportive services, as requested by 
Daly City Peninsula Partnership Collaborative, could be provided by the Town but the 
Town has chosen otherwise. In that case, the Town would likely exceed the amount of the 
grant in staff time and incidental materials to provide these services. The services offered by 
Daly City Partnership are readily accessible to individuals in Colma as the Town is located within 
the Partnership’s service area. Further, the public benefit is substantial as Partnership services 
ensure Colma residents have family support services that are not readily accessible elsewhere.  



Staff Report re: FY 2017-18 Non-profit Funding   Page 8 of 10 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for comprehensive health services and education to 
underserved teens and young adults from Colma, as requested by the Daly City Youth 
Health Center, will provide an identifiable benefit to the community at large. Specifically, this 
program will help youths by providing accessibility and availability of integrated wellness 
services, which will make them better, more informed, and more productive citizens. These 
services are readily accessible to Colma youth, and provide a substantial public benefit by 
ensuring the health and vitality of Colma’s youth. 

The expenditure of public funds to support its Home Sharing program, as requested by HIP 
Housing Development Corporation, could be provided by the Town but the Town has 
chosen otherwise. The services offered by HIP Housing are readily accessible to Colma 
residents, with HIP Housing providing direct assistance and resources to 11 clients in Colma in 
FY 2016-17. Finally, the public benefit is substantial as providing housing to help people live 
independent lives is important for a well-functioning society.   

The expenditure of public funds to pay for walking field trips, Bay Area field trips, nature 
lessons, and an overnight camping trip on the mountain, as requested by Jefferson Union 
High School District for the Wilderness School Program/ Susan B. Anthony School 
Project, will provide an identifiable benefit to the community at large. The public benefit 
provided by these services is substantial as the services provide education to the Town’s youth, 
which will make them better, more informed, and more productive citizens.  

The expenditure of public funds to pay for shelter and supportive services, as requested by 
LifeMoves (formerly the InnVision Shelter Network) could be provided by the Town but 
the Town has chosen otherwise. In that case, the Town would likely expend the amount of the 
grant in staff time and incidental materials to provide these services. The services offered by 
LifeMoves are readily accessible to individuals in Colma as the Town is located within LifeMoves’ 
service area. Further, the public benefit is substantial as LifeMoves’ services ensure Colma 
residents, or anyone traveling through LifeMoves’ network, have shelter and other support 
services. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for nutrition and sustenance (e.g., three days of staple 
groceries and a hot meal three nights each week) to needy persons as requested, as requested 
by North Peninsula Food Pantry and Dining Center of Daly City will provide an 
identifiable benefit to the community at large. The Food Pantry provides services that are 
readily accessible to Colma residents as groceries and hot meals would be available to anyone 
living or traveling through Colma. Overall, the benefit to the public is substantial as the services 
offered by the Food Pantry prevent the public from going hungry. 

The expenditure of public funds to support a staff position to work with its trained volunteers, 
as requested by Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center (“PCRC”), will provide an 
identifiable benefit to the community at large. The services offered by PCRC are readily 
accessible to Colma residents and business owners. Further, the benefit to the public is 
substantial as the services offered by PCRC help avoid conflict issues that may exist between 
members of the Colma community. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for counselling persons with substance abuse and 
mental health disorders, as requested by the Sitike Counseling Center (“Sitike”)  will 
provide an identifiable benefit to the Colma community at large. Sitike offers a First Offender 



Staff Report re: FY 2017-18 Non-profit Funding   Page 9 of 10 

Drinking Driver program, an outpatient treatment program, a Women’s Intensive Day treatment 
program, and an Anger Management program. Sitike does not track the residency locations of 
its clients. Specifically these programs will help stop the spiral of dependency, which will make 
the clients better, more informed, and more productive citizens. The services offered by Sitike 
are readily available to Colma residents and the public benefit is substantial as Sitike helps stop 
the cycle of dependency and mental health issues. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for innovative programs and services for the College 
District’s Foundation, as requested by the San Mateo Community College Foundation, will 
provide educational opportunities to engage citizens that are students at Skyline College.  The 
Town and the community at large will benefit from increased educational opportunities by 
ensuring a well-educated public and citizen base.  A better educated community will advance 
the Town economically, politically, and socially. The services offered by the San Mateo 
Community College Foundation are readily accessible to any Colma residents attending Skyline 
College. Further, the public benefit is substantial as college students are able to experience new 
and unique educational opportunities. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for job preparation workshops, counseling, job 
placement and internships, as requested by the San Mateo County Jobs for Youth 
Program, will provide an identifiable benefit to the Colma community at large. Specifically, this 
program will help youths transition into adulthood and gain work experience, which will make 
them better, more informed, and more productive citizens. The services offered by San Mateo 
County Jobs for Youth are readily accessible to Colma youth as last year, two Colma residents 
participated in this program. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for technical sustainable expertise management, as 
requested by the San Mateo County Resource Conservation District, providing expertise 
to develop sustainable management practices which will reduce water and energy use and 
operational costs. The benefit to the public would be substantial, specifically the cemeteries in 
Town. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for the research and production of the Indicators for a 
Sustainable San Mateo County Report, as requested by Sustainable San Mateo County, will 
provide a much needed resource and educational tool regarding the economy, environment, 
and social issues facing the County.  This report will support the Town’s Sustainable Community 
Strategies and educate and engage citizens, the City Council, and the business community in 
the Town in implementing sustainability policies and objectives. The Sustainable San Mateo 
County Report provides a substantial public benefit by providing the public, private sector, and 
Colma elected officials, with pertinent information regarding sustainability and how it can be 
better met in the County. 

None of these grants will be used to fund existing obligations, debts or liabilities, national and 
regional charitable organizations, religious organizations, a political campaign, or lobbying 
activities. The grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no obligation or 
commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee and that the grantee will not 
discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, gender, age, weight, height, sexual orientation, 
marital status, national origin, disability or other characteristic protected by law. 



Staff Report re: FY 2017-18 Non-profit Funding   Page 10 of 10 

Values 
By providing public funds for charitable purposes, the Council is being compassionate to the 
needs of others. At the same time, by adhering to the Council’s policies and procedures, the 
Council is acting with responsibility. 

Alternatives 
The Council could fund some entities at a different level than staff’s proposed amount. Doing 
so, however, could result in the need to identify additional funding sources as the Adopted 
2017-18 Budget includes only $113,000 in available grant funding. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the Council approve the attached resolution which sets grant funding levels 
as proposed by staff. 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution 
B. Funding request summary 
C. Historical funding levels 
D. Funding requests 

 



Res. 2017-___, FY 2017-18 Non-Profit Funding Page 1 of 11 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-____ 
Of the City Council of the Town of Colma 

RESOLUTION DETERMINING ELIGIBILITY FOR GRANT FUNDING, 
APPROVING GRANTS TO ELIGIBLE ORGANIZATIONS, FINDING THAT 

EACH APPROVED GRANT SERVES A PUBLIC PURPOSE, AND 
AUTHORIZING CONTRACTS WITH EACH ELIGIBLE ORGANIZATION FOR 

THE USE OF TOWN FUNDS 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background

(a) Pursuant to subchapter 4.03 of the Colma Administrative Code and the police power
granted to cities by the California Constitution, the Town of Colma may expend public money by 
making grants upon finding that the organization is eligible for grant funding, the expenditure 
will serve a public purpose, and for an expenditure that provides benefits to the public and 
private persons at the same time, there is a direct and substantial benefit to the public with 
only an incidental benefit to private persons.  

(b) To be eligible, an organization must be an IRC 501(c)(3) charity, a governmental entity, 
or a chamber of commerce. In addition, the organization’s mission must include providing a 
benefit to a defined geographical area that encompasses the Town of Colma, the organization’s 
governing board must reflect the diverse interests of the community, and the organization must 
have policies and procedures to assure that the grant’s purposes are met. 

(c) Grants cannot be given to fund existing debts; to a religious organization unless it is for 
a general need and the project does not promote the teachings of a particular church; or to 
support a political campaign. Grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no 
obligation or commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee.  

(d) An organization may submit a request for determination of eligibility for grant funding, 
which shall include documents and information described in section 4.03.050 of the Colma 
Administrative Code.  Each year after a determination of eligibility has been made, an 
organization need only update each item of new or changed information. 

(e) An organization may submit an application for a charitable donation for each program or 
project to be funded. 

2. Findings of Eligibility for Grant Funding

The City Council has reviewed the funding requests from each of the following organization and 
finds as follows: 

(a) ALLICE Kumares and Kumparas, aka ALLICE, is eligible for grant funding from the Town 
of Colma.  

Discussion. ALLICE is part of the Pilipino Bayanihan Resource Center (PBRC) of San 

Attachment A



Res. 2017-___, FY 2017-18 Non-Profit Funding  Page 2 of 11 

Mateo County. Its mission is to engage community-minded individuals and 
organizations—nonprofit and corporate, private and public—in a movement to educate 
the public about healthy and safe relationships. The Town benefits from the education 
of the community on how to distinguish between healthy and abusive relationships, and 
the availability of pertinent resources to help those in need. The grant funds will be used 
to support an outreach event.  

(b) Clinic by the Bay is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion. Clinic by the Bay is registered with the Attorney General as a public benefit 
nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that 
it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to operate a free, 
volunteer-powered health clinic that provides high-quality, primary care to the hard 
working uninsured men and women in its service area. The Town of Colma is within its 
service area. The Town benefits by having low income adults, in the Town and in the 
surrounding area, served by free primary medical care from Clinic by the Bay.  The 
Town also benefits as Clinic by the Bay provides residents with meaningful volunteer 
opportunities to be part of a neighborhood solution to health care issues.  The grant 
funds will be used to expand primary care, continue to offer Saturday hours, and expand 
chronic disease management programs. 

(c) Greater Colma-Daly City Chamber of Commerce, aka Colma/Daly City Chamber of 
Commerce (“Chamber”), is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion: The Chamber is registered with the California Attorney General  as a mutual 
benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a copy of a letter from the 
Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) stating that it is exempt from tax under Internal 
Revenue Code (“IRC”) section 501(c)(6). Its mission is to encourage business 
development and networking, and to provide members with useful information and 
services. The Chamber serves commercial establishments within the Town of Colma and 
the City of Daly City. The Town of Colma is located within the Chamber’s membership 
area. The Chamber takes an active leadership role in promoting economic, professional, 
commercial and civic vitality for the Town of Colma and surrounding communities. The 
Chamber’s programs and activities benefit its members by providing them with business 
development and networking opportunities as well as educational materials. These 
programs and activities improve the quality of services rendered to the public by the 
Chamber’s members and help increase its members’ sales. In turn, improved service and 
increased sales will increase the Town’s tax revenues, which ultimately inure to the 
benefit of all residents and businesses located in the Town. 

(d) Community Gatepath is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion. Community Gatepath is registered with the Attorney General as a public 
benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS stating 
that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to provide greater 
independence for persons with special needs and disabilities through education and 
support services that empower them. The Town of Colma is within its service area. The 
Town benefits by having people with disabilities becoming active members of the 
community, spending money at local businesses, volunteering and working in the Town. 



Res. 2017-___, FY 2017-18 Non-Profit Funding  Page 3 of 11 

(e) Daly City Peninsula Partnership Collaborative is eligible for grant funding from the Town 
of Colma.  

Discussion: The Daly City Peninsula Partnership Collaborative is registered with the 
Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a 
letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its 
mission is to guide collaborative efforts and connect the community to services that 
promote well-being. The Town of Colma is within its service area. The Partnership runs 
two programs that would receive funding through the granting process: The Daly City 
Community Service Center and the Partnership’s Family Resource Center. The 
Community Center serves low income individuals and families in danger of becoming 
homeless and those needing assistance through emergency shelter or housing 
assistance grants. The Family Resource Center works with families, early childhood 
education professionals and caregivers to promote healthy development, academic 
readiness and safety for children. 

(f) Daly City Youth Health Center is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion: As part of the Jefferson Union High School District (JUHSD), the Daly City 
Youth Health Center is a California governmental entity. The school-linked program’s 
mission statement is to provide safe, respectful, comprehensive health services and 
education to underserved teens and young adults, preparing them for a healthy 
adulthood. The community wellness center’s activities are directed by the JUHSD Board 
of Directors and Advisory Council. The Center served 14 Colma youth and their families 
two or more times during the 2016-17 school year. In addition, five youth from Colma 
became peer health educators in schools and were trained on leadership development 
and public speaking skills. The Town of Colma is within its service area. The Town 
benefits by the Center providing accessibility and availability of integrated wellness 
services to youth, especially those who belong to the low-income and immigrant 
populations residing in Colma. The Town also benefits by the Center providing 
counseling for Colma youth who are suffering from mental health issues, substance use 
and abuse, and suicidal ideation to help youth better cope with their challenges in life. 

(g) HIP Housing Development Corporation (“HIP Housing) is eligible for grant funding from 
the Town of Colma. 

Discussion. HIP Housing is registered with the Attorney General as a public benefit 
nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that 
it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to improve the housing 
and lives of people in the community. HIP Housing enables people with special needs to 
live independent, self-sufficient lives in decent, safe, low-cost homes. The Town of 
Colma is within its service area.  

(h) Jefferson Union High School District (Community Environmental Education Program) is 
eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion. Jefferson is a California governmental entity. The Community Environmental 
Education Program - Susan B. Anthony School Project is a joint program administered by 
Jefferson Union High School District. Its mission is to teach high school students 



Res. 2017-___, FY 2017-18 Non-Profit Funding  Page 4 of 11 

leadership skills and responsibility and to provide elementary school children with field 
trip chaperones, on-site tutors, and positive role models. The project consists of field 
trips, hiking and camping. Many students from the Town of Colma attend Jefferson High 
School or Susan B. Anthony Elementary School, and the number varies from year to 
year. 

(i) LifeMoves (formerly InnVision Shelter Network) is eligible for grant funding from the 
Town of Colma. 

Discussion: LifeMoves is a nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a copy 
of a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). 
Its mission is to help homeless families and individuals in the area and assist them in 
returning to permanent housing and self-sufficiency.  The Town of Colma is located 
within LifeMoves’ service area. The Town benefits from LifeMoves’ work as low-income 
and homeless individuals and families in the area are provided support services to 
reduce the homeless population in the area.   

(j) North Peninsula Food Pantry and Dining Center of Daly City (“Food Pantry”) is eligible 
for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion. The Food Pantry is registered with the California Attorney General as a 
public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the 
IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to 
provide nutrition and sustenance to anyone in need. The Town of Colma is located 
within its service area. Any Colma resident in need may obtain food from the Food 
Pantry, but the Food Pantry does not track the residency locations of its clients.  

(k) Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center (“PCRC”) is eligible for grant funding from the Town 
of Colma. 

Discussion. PCRC is registered with the California Attorney General as a public benefit 
nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is 
exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to promote positive 
collaboration and active engagement among people. It facilitates group discussions and 
trains people in conflict resolution. The Town of Colma is located within its service area, 
which is all of San Mateo County. PCRC will provide free or low-cost information and 
referral services, mediation services, and training to all Colma residents. 

(l) San Mateo Community College Foundation (Skyline College President's Innovation Fund) 
is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion. San Mateo Community College District Foundation is registered with the 
Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town 
with a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). 
Its mission is to promote student success and nourish project innovation and excellence 
by providing special financial support for the three community colleges in the District. In 
particular, the Foundation seeks grant funds for the President’s Innovation Fund which is 
to provide start-up funding and financial support to faculty and staff devising innovative 
programs and services.  The Town of Colma is within the geographic area that the 



Res. 2017-___, FY 2017-18 Non-Profit Funding  Page 5 of 11 

Foundation serves. The Foundation estimates that 24% of students registered at Skyline 
College live in the Colma/Daly City region. 

(m) San Mateo County (Jobs for Youth Program) is eligible for grant funding from the Town 
of Colma.  

Discussion. San Mateo County is a California governmental entity. Jobs for Youth is a 
program sponsored by San Mateo County. Jobs’ mission is to provide all youths with 
employment services that will assist in gaining necessary job skills. The Town of Colma 
is located within its service area. Jobs For Youth served five youth through the Colma 
and Daly City region.  

(n) San Mateo County Resource Conservation District (San Mateo County RCD) is eligible for 
grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

San Mateo County RCD is a California governmental entity. San Mateo County RCD is a 
special district that helps people protect, conserve and restore natural resources through 
non-regulatory technical assistance. The Town of Colma is located within its service 
area. San Mateo County RCD has previously worked with the Town of Colma by 
providing project ideas and services with focus on cemetery irrigation efficiency.  

(o) Sitike Counseling Center (“Sitike”) is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma.  

Discussion. Sitike is registered with the California Attorney General as a public benefit 
nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is 
exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to provide community-based 
substance-abuse counseling and education services. The Town of Colma is located 
within its service area. Sitike has not provided any information about the residency 
locations of its clients. 

(p) Sustainable San Mateo County is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion. Sustainable San Mateo County is registered with the California Attorney 
General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a 
letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its 
mission is to stimulate community action on economic, environmental and social issues 
by providing accurate, timely and empowering information.  In general, the funds will be 
used to support the research and production of the Indicators for a Sustainable San 
Mateo County Report.  The Indicators Report evaluates the health of San Mateo County 
and its cities in terms of sustainability and provides a mean for city officials, non-profits, 
and business leaders, to make educated decisions when considering sustainable policies. 
The Town of Colma is within the geographic area served by Sustainable San Mateo 
County and the Indicators Report covers the area where the Town is located.  

(q) Each of these organizations has adopted and follows policies and procedures to ensure 
that the terms and conditions of all grants are satisfied, and none has participated or intervened 
in any political campaign (including publishing or distributing campaign statements) on behalf of 
or in opposition to any candidate for public office within the past 36 months. 



Res. 2017-___, FY 2017-18 Non-Profit Funding  Page 6 of 11 

3. Findings of Public Purpose 

The City Council has reviewed the applications for grant funds from each of the following 
organization and finds as follows:  

(a) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to ALLICE Kumares and Kumpares, aka 
ALLICE will serve a public purpose.  

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for an outreach event, as requested 
by ALLICE will provide education about the dynamics of healthy and abusive 
relationships. The benefit to the public is substantial as the organization provides 
community-building by strengthening individuals and families through education.     

(b) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to Clinic by the Bay will serve a public 
purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for healthcare services to low 
income, working and The expenditure of public funds to pay for healthcare services to 
low income, working and uninsured adults, as requested by Clinic by the Bay, will 
provide an identifiable benefit to the community at large. The Town and the community 
at large will benefit from increased healthcare services in the form of expanded primary 
care, Saturday hours for services, and an expansion of the chronic disease management 
program.  Low income, working and uninsured adults will have better access to medical 
care, ensuring the health and vitality of the community and of Town residents. All of 
these services are readily accessible to Colma residents and the public benefit is 
substantial as the Town and the community all benefit from a healthy populace. 

(c) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Greater Colma-Daly City Chamber of 
Commerce, aka Colma/Daly City Chamber of Commerce will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for networking opportunities, 
business grand openings, business promotions, facilitating workshops for businesses, 
and operational costs, as requested by the Colma/Daly City Chamber of Commerce could 
be provided by the Town but the Town has chosen otherwise. Specifically, the Town 
could provide these same services as part of its economic development program. In that 
case, the Town would likely expend the amount of the grant in staff time and incidental 
materials to provide these services.  

(d) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to Community Gatepath will serve a public 
purpose. 

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to pay for education and support services 
offered by Community Gatepath to persons with special needs will provide an 
identifiable benefit to the Colma community at large. The Town benefits by having 
people with disabilities become active members of the community through recreational, 
educational and volunteer opportunities with businesses in the Town. The services 
offered by Community Gatepath are readily accessible to Colma residents and the public 
benefit is substantial as people with disabilities have the opportunity to learn and thrive. 



Res. 2017-___, FY 2017-18 Non-Profit Funding  Page 7 of 11 

(e) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Daly City Peninsula Partnership 
Collaborative will serve a public purpose.  

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to pay for shelter and supportive services, 
as requested by Daly City Peninsula Partnership Collaborative, could be provided by the 
Town but the Town has chosen otherwise. In that case, the Town would likely exceed 
the amount of the grant in staff time and incidental materials to provide these services. 
The services offered by Daly City Partnership are readily accessible to individuals in 
Colma as the Town is located within the Partnership’s service area. Further, the public 
benefit is substantial as Partnership services ensure Colma residents have family support 
services that are not readily accessible elsewhere.  

(f) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Daly City Youth Health Center will 
serve a public purpose. 

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to pay for comprehensive health services 
and education to underserved teens and young adults from Colma, as requested by the 
Daly City Youth Health Center, will provide an identifiable benefit to the community at 
large. Specifically, this program will help youths by providing accessibility and availability 
of integrated wellness services, which will make them better, more informed, and more 
productive citizens. These services are readily accessible to Colma youth, and provide a 
substantial public benefit by ensuring the health and vitality of Colma’s youth.  

(g) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to HIP Housing Development Corporation 
will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to support its Home Sharing program, as 
requested by HIP Housing Development Corporation, could be provided by the Town but 
the Town has chosen otherwise. The services offered by HIP Housing are readily 
accessible to Colma residents, with HIP Housing providing direct assistance and 
resources to 11 clients in Colma in FY 2016-17. Finally, the public benefit is substantial 
as providing housing to help people live independent lives is important for a well-
functioning society.  

(h) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Jefferson Union High School District 
for the Wilderness School Program/Susan B. Anthony School Project will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for walking field trips, Bay Area field 
trips, nature lessons, and an overnight camping trip on the mountain, as requested by 
Jefferson Union High School District for the Wilderness School Program/Susan B. 
Anthony School Project, will provide an identifiable benefit to the community at large. 
The public benefit provided by these services is substantial as the services provide 
education to the Town’s youth, which will make them better, more informed, and more 
productive citizens.  

(i) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to LifeMoves (formerly InnVision Shelter 
Network) will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for shelter and supportive services, 



Res. 2017-___, FY 2017-18 Non-Profit Funding  Page 8 of 11 

as requested by LifeMoves (formerly the InnVision Shelter Network) could be provided 
by the Town but the Town has chosen otherwise. In that case, the Town would likely 
expend the amount of the grant in staff time and incidental materials to provide these 
services. The services offered by LifeMoves are readily accessible to individuals in Colma 
as the Town is located within LifeMoves’ service area. Further, the public benefit is 
substantial as LifeMoves’ services ensure Colma residents, or anyone traveling through 
LifeMoves’ network, have shelter and other support services. 

(j) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to North Peninsula Food Pantry and Dining 
Center of Daly City (“Food Pantry”) will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for nutrition and sustenance (e.g., 
three days of staple groceries and a hot meal three nights each week) to needy persons 
as requested, as requested by the Food Pantry, will provide an identifiable benefit to the 
community at large. The Food Pantry provides services that are readily accessible to 
Colma residents as groceries and hot meals would be available to anyone living or 
traveling through Colma. Overall, the benefit to the public is substantial as the services 
offered by the Food Pantry prevent the public from going hungry. 

(k) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center 
(“PCRC”) will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to support a staff position to work with its 
trained volunteers, as requested by PCRC, will provide an identifiable benefit to the 
community at large. The services offered by PCRC are readily accessible to Colma 
residents and business owners. Further, the benefit to the public is substantial as the 
services offered by PCRC help avoid conflict issues that may exist between members of 
the Colma community. 

(l) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Sitike Counseling Center (“Sitike”) 
will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for counselling persons with 
substance abuse and mental health disorders, as requested by Sitike, will provide an 
identifiable benefit to the Colma community at large. Sitike offers a First Offender 
Drinking Driver program, an outpatient treatment program, a Women’s Intensive Day 
treatment program, and an Anger Management program. Sitike does not track the 
residency locations of its clients. Specifically these programs will help stop the spiral of 
dependency, which will make the clients better, more informed, and more productive 
citizens. The services offered by Sitike are readily available to Colma residents and the 
public benefit is substantial as Sitike helps stop the cycle of dependency and mental 
health issues. 

(m) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the San Mateo Community College 
Foundation will serve a public purpose.  

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for innovative programs and services 
for the College District’s Foundation, as requested by the San Mateo Community College 
Foundation, will provide educational opportunities to engage citizens that are students 



Res. 2017-___, FY 2017-18 Non-Profit Funding  Page 9 of 11 

at Skyline College.  The Town and the community at large will benefit from increased 
educational opportunities by ensuring a well-educated public and citizen base.  A better 
educated community will advance the Town economically, politically, and socially. The 
services offered by the San Mateo Community College Foundation are readily accessible 
to any Colma residents attending Skyline College. Further, the public benefit is 
substantial as college students are able to experience new and unique educational 
opportunities. 

(n) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the San Mateo County Jobs for Youth 
Program will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for job preparation workshops, 
counseling, job placement and internships, as requested by the San Mateo County Jobs 
for Youth Program, will provide an identifiable benefit to the Colma community at large. 
Specifically, this program will help youths transition into adulthood and gain work 
experience, which will make them better, more informed, and more productive citizens. 
The services offered by San Mateo County Jobs for Youth are readily accessible to Colma 
youth as last year, two Colma residents participated in this program. 

(o) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the San Mateo County Resource 
Conservation District (“San Mateo County RCD”) will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for technical sustainable expertise 
management, as requested by the San Mateo County RCD, providing expertise to 
develop sustainable management practices which will reduce water and energy use and 
operational costs. The benefit to the public would be substantial, specifically the 
cemeteries in Town. 

(p) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Sustainable San Mateo County will 
serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for the research and production of 
the Indicators for a Sustainable San Mateo County Report, as requested by Sustainable 
San Mateo County, will provide a much needed resource and educational tool regarding 
the economy, environment, and social issues facing the County.  This report will support 
the Town’s Sustainable Community Strategies and educate and engage citizens, the City 
Council, and the business community in the Town in implementing sustainability policies 
and objectives. The Sustainable San Mateo County Report provides a substantial public 
benefit by providing the public, private sector, and Colma elected officials, with pertinent 
information regarding sustainability and how it can be better met in the County.  

(q) None of these grants will be used to fund existing obligations, debts or liabilities, 
national and regional charitable organizations, religious organizations, a political campaign, or 
lobbying activities. The grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no 
obligation or commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee and that the grantee 
will not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, gender, age, weight, height, sexual 
orientation, marital status, national origin, disability or other characteristic protected by law. 



Res. 2017-___, FY 2017-18 Non-Profit Funding  Page 10 of 11 

4. Order 

(a) The City Council approves grant funding to each of the following organizations in the 
amounts shown: 

Grantee Amount 
ALLICE $1,800 
Clinic by the Bay $2,000  
Colma - Daly City Chamber of Commerce $40,000  
Community Gatepath $6,000  
Daly City Peninsula Partnership Collaborative $15,000  
Daly City Youth Health Center $6,000 
Human Investment Project (HIP Housing)  $5,000  
Jefferson Union School District (Wilderness School) $3,000  
LifeMoves (formerly InnVision Shelter Network) $3,000  
North Peninsula Food Pantry & DCDC $12,500  
Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center $1,313  
San Mateo Community College Foundation (Skyline 
College President's Innovation Fund) $1,000 
SMC Conservation District $4,000 
SMC Jobs for Youth $1,000  
Sitike Counseling Center $6,000  
Sustainable San Mateo County $3,000  

TOTAL $112,613 

(b) Each Grantee must execute a Grant Agreement with the Town before any funds may be 
paid. The Grant Agreement shall include a statement of the goal or purpose of the Grant, a time 
within which the goal is expected to be achieved, and reporting requirements. 

 

/ / 

 

/ / 

 

/ / 

 

/ / 

 



Res. 2017-___, FY 2017-18 Non-Profit Funding  Page 11 of 11 

Certification of Adoption 
 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2017-___ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on September 27, 2017 by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      

Joanne F. del Rosario       

John Irish Goodwin      

Diana Colvin      

Voting Tally      
 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Requesting Party Organization's Purpose Town's Money Will be Spent On
Number of Colma Residents 

or Businesses Served
Public Benefit

Amount 
Requested

Annual Report 
Submitted

Verified 
Non-Profit

ALLICE To educate the public about 
healthy and safe relationships.

Support an outreach event Available to all residents Education on healthy 
relationships

 $  1,800 N/A No

Clinic by the Bay Provide healthcare to low-income, 
working, uninsured adults.

Expanding primary care, continuing to 
offer Saturday hours, expanding 
chronic disease management 
program.

28 residents Healthcare  $  3,000 Yes Yes

Colma - DC Chamber of 
Commerce

Provide members with business 
development, networking & 
resources.

Networking events, directory & 
newsletter

Available for all businesses - 
Unclear how many Colma 
businesses are members

Chamber of Commerce  $  45,000 Yes Yes

Community Gatepath Help people with special needs & 
disabilities gain independence.

Nutrition education program 68 residents Life & Vocational skills  $  10,000 Yes Yes

Daly City Peninsula Partnership 
Collaborative

Provide emergency safety net 
services, education, meantal 
health programs, and social 
services.

Provide support to the Daly City 
Community Service Center and 
Partnership's Family Resource (Our 
Second Home)

45 residents Education, affordable 
housing, and shleter

 $  20,000 Yes Yes

Daly City/Colma 4-H Club Empowers youth in participating 
in project based learning and 
working in partnership.

Major tree work needs to be done on 
farm to stop risk on farm and other 
buildings.

All youth residents Education for youth  $  5,000 N/A No

Daly City Public Library 
Associates

Supplement public funding of the 
4 branch libraries in Daly City.

Digital media lab for the library 
system

All residents Access to programs & 
books at the library

 $  2,000 Yes Yes

Daly City Youth Health Center To provide safe, respectful, 
comprehensive health services to 
unserved youth, preparing them 
for a healthy adulthood.

Increase screening for mental health 
and substance abuse in youth and 
provide counseling services.

175 youth Healthcare  $  7,500 Yes Yes

Human Investment Project 
(HIP)

Improving the housing & lives of 
people in our community.

The Home Sharing Program interviews 
& provides direct assistance & 
resources

11 residents Safe, affordable housing  $  5,000 Yes Yes

Jefferson Union High School 
District - Wilderness School

To provide field trip chaperones & 
tutors for elementary school 
students. To teach leadership 
skills to Wilderness students. 
Develop community awareness.

Bus Transportation $3,500      
Entrance Fees $2,000      
Chicken & Garden Supplies $300 
Miscellaneous $1,200

Teens from the Wilderness 
School and all 3rd Grade 
Students at Susan B. Anthony 
School

Education, community & 
environmental 
awareness

 $  4,500 Yes Yes

LifeMoves Shelter & supportive services for 
homeless families & single adults.

ISVN programs and services, bringing 
critical assistance to vulnerable 
members of San Mateo County

21 residents Housing  $  5,000 Yes Yes

North Peninsula Food Pantry &  
Dining Center of Daly City

Provide nutrition & sustenance to 
anyone in need.

Providing groceries & hot meals Information not tracked - Serve 
North County

Feeding the hungry  $  12,500 Yes Yes

Peninsula Conflict Resolution 
Center

Facilitates groups & trains people 
in conflict resolution.

Information, Mediation, Conflict 
Resolution, Administration, 
Recruitment & Training Services.

Information unaviable Mediation  $  1,313 Yes Yes

San Mateo County Community 
College Foundation

Financial support to faculty/staff 
devising innovative programs & 
services.

Resources, Conferences, Speaker 
Series, Outreach

Over 2,500 from Colma/Daly City Education  $  5,000 Yes Yes

Attachment B



San Mateo County Resource 
Conservation District

Helps people protect, conserve 
and restore natural resources 
through non-regulatory technical 
assistance. 

To provide technical sustainable 
expertise management

6 businesses Assistance with resource 
conservation

 $          10,504 N/A Yes

San Mateo County Jobs for 
Youth

Provide youth with services in 
gaining job skills & employment.

Workshops, interviews with youth 
counselors, job placement, internships

5 youth residents - 5 businesses Employment services  $           1,500 Yes Yes

Sitike Counseling Center Outpatient substance abuse 
services.

Grant used to offset operating costs, 
reducing the amount charged to 
clients. 

10 residents Community counseling & 
education

 $           8,000 Yes Yes

Sustainable San Mateo County Report on the economy, 
environment & social issues of 
our county.

Indicators Report All residents & businesses Provides information to 
city officials, residents & 
businesses

 $           5,000 Yes Yes

West Bay Alano Club Safe and sober environment for 
people in recovery from 
addictions.

Grant used for increase of cost of 
moving out of old facilty and keep a 
place for meetings

All residents Anonymous meetings for 
people in recovery from 
addictions

4,000$            Yes Yes

Total Requests 156,617$    



Summary of Non-Profit Requests

Name of Organization

FY 2012-13 
Funded

FY 2013-14 
Funded

FY 2014-15 
Funded

FY 2015-16 
Funded

FY 2016-17 
Funded

FY 2017-18 
Funding 

Requested

Change 
from 

previous 
FY

Alisa Ann Ruch Burn Foundation $1,500 $1,500 $0
ALLICE $1,800 $1,800
Clinic by the Bay $1,000 $2,050 $2,000 $2,000 $3,000 $1,000
Colma - Daly City Chamber of Commerce $45,000 $45,000 $45,000 $45,000 $40,000 $45,000 $5,000
Community Gatepath $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $10,000 $5,000
Daly City / Colma 4H Club $0 $5,000 $5,000
Daly City Partnership $15,000 $20,000 $5,000
Daly City Public Library Associates $500 $1,000 $1,000 $2,000 $2,000 $0
Daly City Youth Health Center $5,000 $5,000 $7,500 $2,500
Human Investment Project (HIP Housing) * $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $0
Jefferson Union High School District (Wilderness School) $7,000 $7,000 $7,000 $7,000 $3,000 $4,500 $1,500
LifeMoves * $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $5,000 $2,000
North Peninsula Food Pantry & DCDC $12,500 $12,500 $12,500 $12,500 $12,500 $12,500 $0
Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center $1,250 $1,250 $1,250 $1,312 $1,313 $1,313 $0
Peninsula Television $0 $0
Rebuilding Together Peninsula $0 $5,000 $5,000 $0
Second Harvest Food Bank $0 $0 $0
San Mateo Community College Foundation $500 $500 $500 $600 $600 $5,000 $4,400
San Mateo County Resource Conservation District $10,504 $10,504
San Mateo County Jobs for Youth $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $1,500 $1,000
Sitike Counseling Center $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 $8,000 $2,000
Sustainable San Mateo County $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $5,000 $2,000
West Alano Bay Club $3,000 $4,000 $4,000 $0

Total (including Housing Element required grantees) $90,250 $96,750 $96,800 $99,912 $107,913 $156,617 $48,704

Footnotes: 
* Indicates a Housing Element required grantee ; funding will come from Planning 
Department budget



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Attachment D
































































































































































	09.27.17 Regular Meeting Agenda
	1. 09.13.17  Regular Minutes
	2. Second Reading - Preferential Parking
	3. SSAR
	A. Resolution
	B. Agreement

	4. Grant Funding Request for DCPLA
	A. Resolution
	B. Funding Request

	5. FY 2017-2018 Non-Profit Funding
	A. Resolution
	B. Funding Request Summary
	C. Historical Funding Levels
	D. Funding Requests

	C. Historic Funding Levels.pdf
	Sheet1




